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Profile
Aiming to Be a First-Class, Global Company by Executing “One Company” Management
HORIBA is a global group of companies consisting of 6 companies with 2,028 employees in Japan and 37 companies 
with 2,669 employees overseas. The core businesses are R&D, the production and sales of analytical and measurement 
equipment in the fields of environment, health, safety and energy.
    Management policy at HORIBA is focused on establishing a “win-win” relationship: It is based on the belief that all stakeholders 
can benefit from its business activities. With this belief, we strive to cultivate the value of our brand, human resources and 
technology, and to foster our unique corporate culture — as expressed in company mottos such as “Joy and Fun.” 
    We are pursuing an active M&A program to expand our business operations, and promoting “One Company” 
management based on respecting our corporate culture to increase our corporate value. As a result of these efforts, from 
1997 to 2006, net sales and operating income increased 10% and 15%, respectively, on an annual basis.  In our Mid-
Long Term Management Plan, we are targeting net sales of ¥150 billion, an operating income ratio of at least 10% and 
return on equity (ROE) of at least 11% in the year ending December 31, 2010.
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Financial Highlights
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
The years ended March 20, 2005, March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

Thousands of
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(Note)

 U.S. dollars 
(Note)

Note: The U.S. dollar amounts are provided solely for convenience at the rate of ¥119.11 to US$1.00, the rate prevailing on December 31, 2006.

Change of Fiscal Year-end
HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from March 20 to December 31, effective from the fiscal year under review. As a result of the change, the following irregular fiscal periods have 
arisen: The fiscal period for HORIBA, Ltd. and HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd. comprises the 9 months and 11 days from March 21, 2006 to December 31, 2006; and the 
fiscal period for HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd. comprises the 9 months from April 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006. As the fiscal year-end of other consolidated subsidiaries was already 
December 31, the length of their fiscal periods remains unchanged at 12 months. 

Disclaimer Regarding Future Plans and Forecasts
This annual report contains certain statements describing HORIBA’s future plans, strategies, and performance forecasts. These statements reflect management’s assumptions and 
beliefs based on current information available. Therefore, actual performance may differ significantly from the forecasts due to various factors in the operating environment.
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To Our Stakeholders

Results for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006

The nine-month fiscal period ended December 31, 2006, 

was the first term of our current Mid-Long Term 

Management Plan. Since we changed our fiscal year-end 

from March to December during this business year, the 

fiscal period for three principal domestic companies was 

shortened to nine months. Despite the shortened period, 

HORIBA achieved a year-on-year increase in net sales, 

surpassing the ¥100 billion mark.

    With regard to our business segments; integrating the 

automotive development test systems (DTS) business, 

acquired from Germany's Carl Schenck AG in 2005, into 

HORIBA's Automotive Test Systems segment caused a 

drop in segment profitability. However, this acquisition has 

laid the foundation for strong future segment growth. 

Earnings in the Analytical Instruments & Systems segment 

rose significantly as demand for environmental instruments 

increased.  A continuous stream of new product launches in 

Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems helped the 

segment recover its profitability. We steadily increased 

production in the Semiconductor Instruments & Systems 

segment by successfully leveraging the market boom to 

realize strong performance.  

    For the period's results, we posted ¥116.0 billion 

(US$974.7 million) in consolidated net sales, up 9.9% from 

the previous year, while operating income was ¥11.7 billion 

(US$98.2 million), up 3.8%. Despite the shortened fiscal 

year, net income rose 0.6% to ¥6.5 billion (US$54.6 million) 

as a result of a decline in special losses and a decrease in 

the effective tax rate.

    During the current fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, 

we expect to maintain the increase in income and earnings 

realized by the HORIBA group companies in recent years by 

focusing management efforts on ensuring that we achieve 

the targets of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan.

HORIBA begins this new fiscal period with a challenge: 
to achieve ¥150 billion in net sales while maintaining more than a 10% 
operating income ratio and a return on equity (ROE) over 11% by 
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. 

Atsushi Horiba     Chairman, President & CEO
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Review of the First Year of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan
After the announcement of the current Mid-Long Term Management Plan in June 2006, 

the HORIBA's top management, the heads of its business divisions, and other corporate 

executives gathered for a global strategy meeting. A host of topics including business strategies 

and measures to improve brand value and asset efficiency led to lively discussion. During this 

meeting, I gained a strong sense that our management principle adopted in 2005, “the HORIBA 

Group is One Company,” had transcended traditional barriers between countries and business 

segments to become firmly embedded within the HORIBA group companies. The most important 

driving forces that have been carefully cultivated in “the HORIBA Group is One Company” principle 

are corporate culture, technical capabilities, and, the hardest to foster, communication. However, 

the fact that our global communication is improving shows we are making good use of our many 

business resources—resources with the potential to multiply in value.  This experience has 

enhanced my confidence in the long-term growth of HORIBA.

During the fiscal period under review, we also moved to strengthen our management structure 

and increase operating efficiency. In Japan we merged two group companies, Schenck-TKS Test 

Systems Ltd. and HORIBA Biotechnology Co., Ltd., into HORIBA, Ltd.  Overseas we began 

operating a second production plant in Shanghai, China with the ability to produce products for all 

HORIBA group companies and business segments. In Korea, HORIBA, Ltd. made the production 

facility, HORIBA Korea Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary and acquired its product sales company.

In this first year of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan, we executed intensive actions to 

enhance efficient operation by consolidating companies and expanding production capacity. 

Another measure we took fosters a sense of unity by promoting acceptance of the HORIBA 

philosophy within all worldwide HORIBA group companies.

Principal Measures for 2007
The slogan adopted for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, is “Increase in the HORIBA 

brand value.”  We have experienced rapid worldwide growth in recent years by adding companies 

to HORIBA through M&A, new facilities and implementing other global strategies.  Our international 

growth during these years has raised our foreign employee percentage to 57%.  To achieve 

continued corporate growth, not just in terms of scale but also in a way that maintains quality, it 

becomes even more important for each and every employee to embrace the “Joy and Fun” motto 

HORIBA Training Center (FUN HOUSE) 
HORIBA’s training center in Kutsuki, Shiga Prefecture, is 
known as the “Fun House,” and provides the backdrop for 
the photographs of the president and top management in 
this annual report. For more details about the training 
center, see pages 20 and 21.
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and our unique corporate culture and spirit.  Employees embody the HORIBA culture and spirit into 

their personal “Omoi” (conviction), and find tangible ways to express and implement our culture 

and spirit into their daily jobs. One of the tools they use to accomplish this is the HORIBA Brand 

Book, published in January this year and distributed to all employees worldwide. (See page 19 for 

more information on the HORIBA Brand Book.)

In business operations, HORIBA has significantly strengthened its business activities in the U.S.  

A key region, the U.S. accounts for around 40% of our market for analytical and measurement 

equipment, but only 20% of our global sales. I believe that successfully expanding our presence in 

the U.S. market—the home ground of powerful competitors —is an essential prerequisite to growth 

as a truly global company. We have, therefore, implemented the “U.S. Strategy Project,” to which 

we are devoting some of our best people. As part of this strategy, we have established a new 

facility for our semiconductor business in Santa Clara, California, the heart of Silicon Valley, to focus 

marketing and product development on our U.S. customers.

Message to Stakeholders
As our performance has improved over the last few years, HORIBA has attracted considerably 

more attention from capital markets and the general public, and the aggregate market value of our 

stock—the leading indication of our corporate value — has been increased. Personally, I am 

extremely pleased by these developments, while at the same time I feel as if I'm being placed 

under even more pressure, albeit in a good way. The extent to which employees share this feeling 

of greater expectation, and whether we are all facing the same way and moving in the same 

direction, will be key to ensuring the continued growth of HORIBA. Viewed from that perspective, 

I feel that cultivating globally-oriented, high-quality human resources is indispensable. Short-term 

performance is significantly impacted by external factors such as markets and the state of the 

economy. Nonetheless, the value of personnel is an absolute, and holds 

the promise of continued growth and the creation of value for a company 

over the medium to long term.

At HORIBA, we will continue to manage with a long-term perspective. 

I sincerely hope that all our stakeholders understand and agree with our 

management policies, and will remain with us for many years to come.

Atsushi Horiba
Chairman, President & CEO

April 2007
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HORIBA's Mid-Long Term Management Plan （2006–2010） 

Achieving “One Company” Management and Becoming a First-Class, Global Company

2006/12 2010/12

¥116.0 billion

¥150.0 billion

¥200.0 billion

1999/3

¥67.5 billion

1996/3

¥40.6 billion

Numerical targets

Net sales

Operating income ratio

ROE (Return on equity)

FY ended 
2006/12 (Results)

¥116.0 billion

10.1%

9.4%

FY ending 
2010/12 (Targets)

¥150.0 billion

10.0%

11.0%

6.6% 3.4%
9.4%

10.1%

2.0% 1.5%

Operating
income ratio

ROE

Net sales

HORIBA has established the management principle of 
“the HORIBA Group is One Company,” and introduced 
a variety of reforms, such as commencing management 
on a global business basis and eliminating between 
HORIBA group companies. However, to enhance our 
corporate value and become the leader in the analytical 
and measurement equipment market, we must 
execute our “One Company” Management principle, 
increase speed and efficiency, and make the leap to 
become a first-class, global company. Our goal is to 
sustain well-balanced growth among our four 
business segments, and in the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2010, achieve ¥150 billion in net sales, 
an operating income ratio greater than 10%, and a 
ROE of over 11%.

Priority Measures

About the Mid-Long Term Management Plan (MLMAP) Logo
The MLMAP logo is based on a high-altitude balloon powered by 
clean energy. The four colors of the balloon represent our four 
business segments (Automotive Test Systems, Analytical Instruments 
& Systems, Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems, and 
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems). It symbolizes HORIBA's 
aspiration to ascend higher still by lightening the load in the basket (our 
assets) as the balloon (our businesses) achieves well-balanced growth.

Automotive Test Systems

Analytical Instruments & Systems

Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems

Building a Platform for
¥200 Billion in Sales

Building
 a Well-Balanced

 Business Portfolio

Increasing the 
“Invisible Values”

Progress toward targets of 
the Mid-Long Term Management Plan (MLMAP)

Business 
Segment

Automotive

Analytical

Medical/
Diagnostic 

Semiconductor

Total

2010/12
Targets

50,000

40,000

33,000

27,000

150,000

37,945

35,054

22,989

20,111

116,099

75.9%

87.6%

69.7%

74.5%

77.4%

56.6%

121.3%

42.5%

113.0%

75.5%

2006/12
Results

Progress 
toward targets

Net Sales Operating Income

3,680

2,668

1,404

3,955

11,707

6,500

2,200

3,300

3,500

15,500

(Millions of yen)

2010/12
Targets

2006/12
Results

Progress 
toward targets
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Pursuit of global business strategies sss

The introduction of “One Company” Management has led to the 

breakedown of barriers between countries, regions and 

companies, and the reform of the business structure to one in 

which business strategies and plans are formulated on a business 

segment basis. This allows for quick and varied responses to 

market trends in each business field, as well as the pursuit of 

globally unified business management.

Effective management on a regional basis sss

HORIBA is introducing shared services on a regional basis for 

Europe, the Americas and Asia, consolidating certain operations 

common to numerous group companies, such as accounting and 

finance, legal affairs, intellectual property management, human 

resources and IT. This structure will allow us to bring together a 

small number of personnel with first-class skills, which will improve 

the quality of our operations, as well as help raise productivity while 

lowering costs throughout all HORIBA group companies.

Introduction of the ERP System sss

The Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system has been 

developed since 2005, which is being introduced in stages at the 

HORIBA group companies in 2007. The implementation of this 

system will require a substantial investment, but by utilizing the 

system's high-quality information to stimulate growth and 

become more efficient, we anticipate a rapid return on this 

investment and also additional benefits from the system which 

will contribute to higher earnings.

Pursuit of global business strategies

Effective management on a regional basis

Introduction of the ERP System

As a corporation grows, its operating systems and 
structures must grow with it to maintain control of 
the organization. HORIBA is taking action now to 
establish a foundation that will support sustainable 
growth as we continue to develop and seek to 
achieve the next target of ¥200 billion in sales.

The Core Components of Our Strategy

Taking “One Company” Management to a Higher Level

Building a Platform for ¥200 Billion in Sales
Priority
Measure 

“One Company” Matrix Operation
As

ia
/J

ap
an

Eu
ro

pe
Am

er
ic

as

Automotive 
Test Systems

Analytical 
Instruments 
& Systems

Medical/
Diagnostic 

Instruments 
& Systems

Semiconductor 
Instruments 
& Systems

USA USA

Italy Italy

Germany UK

Sweden SwedenSwedenFrance

Germany UK

France

Germany UK

France

Japan

China

Korea

Singapore

Japan

China

Korea

Singapore

Japan

China

Korea

Singapore

Japan

China

Thailand

USA Brazil

Brazil

Czech

Czech Czech

Austria Austria Russia

SpainRussia

Russia

India

India

The Netherlands

The Netherlands

USA Canada

Germany

UK

France

Italy

Poland

Austria Spain

Portugal

Belgium
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HORIBA at a Glance

Building a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio
Priority
Measure

Automotive Test Systems
Extend the business by providing a wide range of 
automotive development test systems, 
focused on leading products 

Aim to become the world leader in niche markets
while further refining analytical and
measurement technology

Strive to become a core business 
by expanding market share through 
aggressive product development 

Generate consistently high profits by
 providing high value-added analytical 
and control technologies to the 
burgeoning semiconductor industry

Analytical Instruments & Systems

Medical/Diagnostic
Instruments & Systems

Semiconductor
Instruments & Systems

Business Outlook by Region

HORIBA’s emission measurement systems command an 80% share of 
the global market. They have been adopted as standard equipment by 
many emission gas certification organizations throughout the world, 
and are used worldwide in the automotive industry for R&D and quality 
control in manufacturing plants. Looking ahead, HORIBA will go beyond 
providing emission measurement to respond to leading-edge 
technological developments and offer a more diversified range of 
automotive tests. Our overriding goal will be to offer total solutions that 
enhance the efficiency of the development process for our customers.

HORIBA manufactures over 500 types of instruments; the development of which 
is supported by the parent company’s broad base of analytical and measurement 
technology, and the advanced optical measurement technology of HORIBA Jobin 
Yvon SAS (France). These products command leading shares in niche markets 
and are used in a wide range of applications, including R&D and production 
facilities of public sector and private sector organizations, as well as organizations 
that monitor environmental pollution. The segment also invests in the 
development of basic technologies to provide new analytical and measurement 
technology to other business segments.

This segment is active in the in-vitro diagnostics market, which amounts to over 
¥2 trillion in annual sales globally. The segment’s business model provides a 
stable earnings stream due to the sale of replacement reagents following the 
initial sale of testing equipment. In the past, HORIBA was successful in 
expanding market share for small- and medium-sized hematology analyzers. In 
recent years, however, we have expanded our operations by progressively 
launching large hematology analyzers and new products in the clinical 
chemistry market. The product development and marketing prowess of HORIBA 
ABX SAS (France) has been instrumental in these efforts.

Mass flow controllers—devices that control gas and liquid flows in 
the semiconductor manufacturing process—account for around 
70% of sales in this segment. As a result, the business is 
susceptible to trends in the semiconductor industry. HORIBA is 
therefore targeting stable profits by leveraging our technological 
resources to respond to demands in the 300mm semiconductor 
wafer market. Such demands focus on improving yield rates 
through total solutions relating to the control and analysis of 
process chambers.

To this point, HORIBA’s Asia focus has been mainly in 
Japan. We have many products that command high 
market shares, particularly those for R&D applications 
and environmental regulations. Going forward, we will 
develop products tailored to local market needs and 
build supply structures incorporating production bases in rapidly 
expanding markets such as China and India.

AsiaFor its operating areas in Asia, Europe and the Americas, 
HORIBA maintains a regional balance in sales, production 
and other business aspects in order to minimize the impact 
of differing economic cycles in each region. Another benefit 
of this arrangement is the ability to avoid foreign exchange 
risk associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates 
and country risks stemming from natural disasters, political 
turmoil or other factors.

Share of
sales 

46%

Share of
net sales

33%

Share of
net sales

30%

Share of
net sales

20%

Share of
net sales

17%
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With a view to breaking away from its earlier reliance on the Automotive Test Systems segment for profits, HORIBA is 
targeting well-balanced growth among all business segments. This will include the Semiconductor Instruments & 
Systems segment and Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems segment, in which aggressive investment is 
beginning to yield results, as well as the Analytical Instruments & Systems segment, which is posting strong growth. 
Moreover, we are also pursuing regional diversification. We are expanding beyond the developed countries that have 
been our principal markets to date, and are actively investing in the fast-growing Chinese market, as well as in 
emerging markets such as India and South America. 

HORIBA has rapidly expanded its European sales in 
the automotive, analytical and medical fields through 
several M&As in recent years (HORIBA ABX SAS 
(France), HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS (France), and the 
DTS business of Carl Schenck AG (Germany)). 
Looking ahead, we expect consistent increases in demand backed by 
growth in the East European and Russian markets.

Europe
The Americas account for 40% of the global demand 
for analytical and measurement instruments, so  
sales expansion in this major market is essential to 
HORIBA’s global development. We are particularly 
focused on product development and marketing for 
the medical and semiconductor fields, where our market penetration 
is still low.

Americas
Share of

sales 

31%

Share of
sales 

23%

Principal products:

Major customers:

Product applications:

emission measurement systems, in-use automotive emission analyzers, on-
board emission measurement systems, fuel cell evaluation systems, driveline 
test systems, engine test systems, brake test systems, drive recorders

automobile manufacturers, motorcycle manufacturers, automotive component 
manufacturers, multi-purpose motor manufacturers, government agencies, oil 
companies, automotive maintenance and repair centers

development of new car models and engines, finished vehicle certification and 
QC, in-use vehicle inspections

Principal products:

Major customers:

Product applications:

scientific analysis instruments (particle-size distribution analyzers, X-ray 
fluorescence analyzers, Raman spectrophotometers, diffraction gratings); 
environmental measuring instruments (pH meters, stack gas analyzers, water 
quality analysis and examination systems, air pollution analyzers)

manufacturers, national research institutions, universities, government agencies, 
electric power companies

R&D, product quality testing, measurement of wastewater and gas emissions, 
environmental pollution monitoring, criminal forensics

Principal products:

Major customers:

Product applications:

equipment for blood sample analysis (hematology analyzers, equipment for 
measuring immunological responses, clinical chemistry analyzers, blood sugar 
measurement systems)

medical testing centers, small- and medium-sized hospitals, medical 
practitioners

health and diagnostic testing, disease diagnosis

Principal products:

Major customers:

Product applications:

mass flow controllers, chemical concentration monitors, thin-film analyzers for 
semiconductors and LCD inspection, reticle/mask particle detection systems, 
residual gas analyzers, vacuum meters

semiconductor production equipment manufacturers, semiconductor device 
makers, semiconductor cleaning equipment manufacturers

control of gas flows and monitoring of cleaning fluid concentrations in 
semiconductor manufacturing processes, semiconductor and LCD quality control 
inspections

Main risk factors
More than half of the products in this segment 
are used for the R&D or production of 
automobiles. There is a possibility of a 
significant impact on earnings resulting from a 
reduction in R&D investment, a shift in 
investment priorities, cuts in the number of 
production facilities or other negative 
developments in the global automotive industry.

Main risk factors
There is a possibility of a significant impact on 
earnings resulting from a sudden fall in product 
retail prices due to the fiercely competitive na-
ture of the business, or from significant shifts in 
demand resulting from changes in environmen-
tal regulations.

Main risk factors
There is a possibility of a significant impact on 
earnings resulting from fluctuations in profitabili-
ty caused by changes in medical insurance sys-
tems in various countries, or by product recalls 
related to the strict standards of performance 
and quality demanded of medical devices.

Main risk factors
There is a possibility of a significant impact on 
earnings resulting from rapid fluctuations in de-
mand due to the effects of the “silicon cycle” in 
the semiconductor industry.

HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/12 7



Building a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio Review of Operations by Business Segment

The fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, was the first full 
fiscal period after integrating the automotive development 
test systems (DTS) business, acquired from Carl Schenck 
AG in Germany in September 2005, into HORIBA’s 
Automotive Test Systems segment. This acquisition has 
allowed us to move from a business centered on existing 
HORIBA automotive emission measurement operations to 
an expanded framework capable of offering a wide range 
of solutions for automotive R&D and testing facilities.

Frequently corporate integrations and business alliances 
incorporating two different corporate cultures are expected 
to cause post-acquisition internal friction. However, the 
integration of HORIBA and DTS business achieved 
significant progress in a short time. This was due to natural 
synergies, including business domains and technological 
fields that perfectly complemented each other, existing 
global operations in both companies, and shared 
customers.  As a result, marketing, services, project 
management, design and development are now all 
operating worldwide under a unified organization. This 
integration is already bearing tangible results—the segment 
has been successful in winning contracts and supplying 
large turnkey projects, including installation of entire testing 
systems for important European, North and South 
American, and Asian customers.  Before the acquisition 
these projects were beyond our reach with just the 
emissions product line. 

In recent years, the automotive industry has been 
characterized by ongoing technological reforms focused on 
cutting costs, improving environmental performance and 
improving automotive safety, that is to say, manufacturers are 
constantly faced with new challenges for their R&D. 
At HORIBA, the segment now has in place a framework to 
deliver broad-ranging solutions to these challenges which 
should increase the size of our target market for this business 
approximately five-fold to ¥200 billion. 

The segment will continue to offer internationally 
oriented solutions in which HORIBA already excels, while 
ensuring that firmly established systems in the new 
business domain provide flexible response to local 
requirements.  With this approach, the Automotive Test 
Systems segment is steadily moving toward increased 
customer satisfaction and greater market share.

Automotive Test Systems

Achieving the Goals of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan  sss

Automotive 
Test Systems

HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/128

The Automotive Test Systems management team

Net Sales and Operating Income Ratio
(Millions of yen/%)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12 2010/12
(Target)

20,349
21,131

23,582
27,022 37,945

34,446 50,000

9.3%

14.9% 14.8%

17.4%

13.0%

18.9%

9.7%

Share of
net sales

33%

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales 

Operating Income

2006/3 2006/12 Change

34,446

6,509

37,945

3,680

+10.2%

-43.5%

Results 

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales

Operating Income

50,000

6,500

Targets for the Mid-Long Term
Management Plan （2010/12） 

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from
March 20 to December 31.



Results for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 and 
Business Strategies
Although Automotive Test Systems segment sales benefited from the full year’s 

contribution of ¥8.8 billion from the DTS business, the segment’s operating income 

ratio declined. This was primarily due to lower profit margins for DTS products 

than for existing products and the amortization of goodwill relating to the business 

acquisition. Sales to the U.S. of mainstay large automotive emission measurement 

systems recorded a slight decline after the super strong demands for new 

automotive emission regulation requirement in the previous fiscal year. 

To promote efficiency and bolster domestic sales during the fiscal period the 

segment’s domestic business strategy merged Schenck-TKS Test Systems Ltd., 

previously the domestic operating base for the DTS business, with HORIBA, Ltd.

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2007
We expect that accelerating the DTS business integration will hasten the emergence 

of our synergy benefits. This should lead to increased DTS earnings and strong 

performance in existing HORIBA automotive emission measurement operations.

Major Products and Market Share

These systems are used for a wide variety of tests 
on engines and can integrate a large range of 
instrumentation for emission gas and performance 
assessments. Within the typical small space of an 
engine test cell, these systems can simulate the 
worst operating conditions that an engine might 
experience in any application.

Engine Test Systems

Automotive Test Systems
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HORIBA aims to be the leading worldwide provider of testing systems to the automotive 
industry by utilizing our wide ranging technical knowledge, global 
development/customer support capabilities and strong brand identity.

Millions of yen Millions of yen

2000/3 2001/3 2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3
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Source: 
2005 Survey of Research and Development, R&D Expenditures 
by Industry (Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications)

Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA, Ltd.
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Synergy Matrix of integration of HORIBA and DTS

Emissions

Market scale
 (Billions of yen)

Product Overview

Equipment to measure the concentration/mass 
of components in exhaust gas from automobiles 

and engines
Equipment for engine testing such as 

dynamometers for all aspects of engine 
performance

Equipment to test the performance, durability 
and other aspects of vehicle drivetrains such as 

noise, vibration, and passenger comfort
Equipment to conduct various environmental 
tests on assembled vehicles, such as chassis 

dynamometer tests

Large-scale equipment to simulate actual 
vehicle operating conditions, such as for 

measuring wind resistance
Equipment to test overall brake performance 
such as durability, braking force, temperature, 

noise and vibration

DTS
businessHORIBA After

integration

Weak Strong

Business field

Brakes

Wind tunnel 
balances

Vehicles

Drivetrains

Engines

World 
market share

80%

Segment
sales 

70%

Emission Measurement Systems
These systems continuously and 
simultaneously measure gases and 
particulate material in automotive exhaust 
gas over a broad range of concentrations. 
They are widely used in R&D and product 
certification in the automotive and other 
industries.

World 
market share

10%

R&D expenses in the Japanese automotive industry (Left)
HORIBA’s Automotive Test Systems segment sales (Right)

Comparison of R&D expenses in the Japanese
automotive industry and HORIBA’s Automotive
Test Systems segment sales

Segment
sales 

15%



Analytical
Instruments
& Systems
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Net Sales and Operating Income Ratio
(Millions of yen/%)

25,249
27,037

29,426
28,510 35,054

32,672 40,000

3.7%

2.8%

3.5%

3.0%

4.0%

7.6%

5.5%

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12 2010/12
(Target)

Share of
net sales

30%

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales 

Operating Income

2006/3 2006/12 Change

32,672

1,322

35,054

2,668

+7.3%

+101.8%

Results 

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales

Operating Income

40,000

2,200

Targets for the Mid-Long Term
Management Plan  (2010/12)

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from
March 20 to December 31.

Analytical Instruments & Systems

Building a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio Review of Operations by Business Segment

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the scientific 
instruments business benefited from product development 
targeting the requirements of new environmental regulations.  
In particular, the X-ray fluorescence analyzer business 
demonstrated buoyant sales thanks to demand from 
worldwide electrical equipment manufacturers for analyzers 
meeting the requirements of the RoHS Directive regulating 
levels of harmful heavy metals. There was significant demand 
for general-purpose analyzers; in particular molecular 
spectrometers used for fluorescence spectroscopy and 
Raman spectroscopy, as well as elemental analysis 
instruments for sulfur content in oil analysis and atomic 
emission spectrometry. As a result, the scientific instruments 
business achieved a high level of net sales and improved 
profitability.

To maintain this momentum during the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2007, we will promote the integrated 
management of the scientific instruments business as part of 
the “One Company” management initiative under the Mid-
Long Term Management Plan. We are scheduled to launch 
new products designed to be future mainstays in particle-size 
distribution.  These analyzers will launch with a full range of 
options and accessories and an exciting new sample 
preparation tool for electron microscopy users. We are also 
expecting increased orders for high-energy gratings and OEM 
spectrometers as those businesses grow. 

In the process & environmental business, HORIBA has 
developed advanced analysis technologies and fostered many 
experts over the past 40-plus years. The process & environmental 
business has consistently responded to new and challenging 
market needs in response to environmental regulations 
enacted in Europe, the U.S. and Japan. These new 
technologies represent assets that are currently in demand in 
China and other emerging markets, where they are earning 
us high market shares. We will continue to expand our 
operations by providing advanced measurement technologies 
which integrate HORIBA’s core technologies with the 
continuous analysis technology it has developed for the 
environmental field. Our strength lies in our ability to provide 
high-quality products that address the increasing number of 
risk management-related needs, measure productivity and 
sustain quality control.

Achieving the Goals of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan  sss

The Analytical Instruments & Systems management team



Results for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 and 
Business Strategies
Thanks to substantial increases in private-sector capital expenditure for environmental 
regulation-related analytical and measurement equipment, the segment achieved high 
levels of net sales and operating income. By product, particularly strong domestic 
and Asian sales were recorded for X-ray analytical instruments targeting compliance 
with the European RoHS Directive regulating hazardous substances. In addition, 
demand for other analyzers increased, including U.S. demand for sulfur content in oil 
analyzers and Japanese demand for stack gas analyzers. Meanwhile, HORIBA Jobin 
Yvon SAS in France, with considerable expertise in nanotechnology measurement, 
leveraged its advanced technological capabilities to expand sales in related cutting-
edge scientific fields. 

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2007
A cyclical downturn in the demand generated by European hazardous substance 
regulations is expected to lead to lower sales of related analytical products. In this 
context, the segment will take measures to put in place a framework capable of 
responding to demand from advanced technological fields as well as environmental 
regulation-related businesses, which offer good prospects for continued growth in the 
medium and long terms. One measure in this regard has been to improve the sales 
network in China and the U.S. during the fiscal period under review.

Major Products and Market Share

Analytical Instruments & Systems
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In the scientific instruments business, HORIBA is seeking to increase its role as 
a provider of leading-edge technical resources to establish a highly profitable business 
structure. In the process & environmental business, we are broadening our operating 
base to include the industrial process measurement field, and are pursuing aggressive 
expansion in the environmental regulation field in emerging countries.
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Millions of yen Millions of yen
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Source: 
Statistical data, Japan Analytical Instruments 
Manufacturers Association

Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA, Ltd.

Air pollutant monitoring system in Pakistan

Expand Market Shares of World-leading Products

Scientific

Integration of 
HORIBA, Ltd. 

and 
HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS 

operational and 
product strategies

Molecular & Microanalysis
 (X-ray, Raman, fluorescence)

Elemental analysis
 (metals, ICP, organic matter)

Optical components
(spectrometers, grading, infrared sensors)

Particle-size 
analysis

Water quality analysis 
(scientific)

Emerging businesses

Water quality analysis 
(environment)

Trace gas measurement 
(air pollution)

Emission gas measurement 
(stack gas)

Industrial process analysisProcess
 & 

Environmental

Reinforcement
of non-regulation 

business

Production of analytical instruments in Japan (Left)
HORIBA’s Analytical Instruments & Systems segment sales (Right)

Production of analytical instruments in Japan and 
HORIBA’s Analytical Instruments &
Systems segment sales

Japanese 
market share

40%

Segment
sales 

8%

World 
market share

35%

Segment
sales 

12%

Stack Gas Analyzers
These analyzers provide highly sensitive and 
precise measurements of the NOx, SO2, CO, 
CO2, and O2 content of gases emitted by boi-
lers and furnaces in thermal power stations. 
This single unit can simultaneously and con-
tinuously measure all five compounds.

Spectrographs/Diffraction Gratings
Spectrographs separate light into colors, and record them as a spectrum. Grat-
ings are the heart of a spectrograph. Spectrographs from HORIBA Jobin Yvon 
(France) meet a wide range of market demands, from plasma emission spectro-
scopy and fluorescence spectrum measure-
ment to image dispersion, and quality man-
agement to production management.



Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & SystemsMedical/Diagnostic
Instruments
& Systems
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Net Sales and Operating Income Ratio
(Millions of yen/%)

14,520
15,942

17,301
18,777 22,989

20,508 33,000

4.6%

8.7%

8.7%

6.1% 6.1%

4.6%

10.0%

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12 2010/12
(Target)

Share of
net sales 

20%

Building a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio Review of Operations by Business Segment

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales 

Operating Income

2006/3 2006/12 Change

20,508

953

22,989

1,404

+12.1%

+47.3%

Results 

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales

Operating Income

33,000

3,300

Targets for the Mid-Long Term
Management Plan  (2010/12)

The Mid-Long Term Management Plan (MLMAP) targets the 
net sales of ¥150 billion by the end of December 2010 fiscal 
year. This would represent growth of 42% compared with the 
March 2006 fiscal year. However, as the Medical/Diagnostic 
Instruments & Systems segment is central to the growth and 
earnings expansion of HORIBA, this segment has been set 
minimum targets higher than the average growth rate for 
MLMAP—the sales growth target is at least 61% (average 
annual rate 10% or more) and the operating income ratio 
target is at least 10%.

To realize these targets, the segment is steadily rolling out 
new models—from simple to high-end—of hematology 
analyzers, new versions of reagents and new products for 
expanding the line. At the same time, we are developing and 
supplying a comprehensive management system for a range 
of testing devices, samples and results. This new 
management system targets both the clinical laboratory 
market and the market for POCT/NPT (Point Of Care Testing 
or Near Patient Testing—simple and quick testing conducted 
close to the patient). We expect these measures to lead to an 
increased operating income ratio led by higher sales of 
reagents which will accompany growth in the number of in-use, 
high-end hematology analyzers and clinical chemistry analyzers.

Looking ahead, large-scale M&A activity centering on the 
in-vitro diagnostics analysis market and extending into other 
business areas will generate fierce competition. In response, 

the segment will work to increase sales of high-end 
hematology analyzers to Japanese and Asian markets, as 
well as to expand our market of clinical chemistry analyzers 
and reagents to the Americas and Asia, which have been 
primarily sold in Europe. With these measures the segment is 
targeting a 10% annual sales growth, as well as higher operating 
income and an improvement in the operating income ratio. 

We are aware that a vital improvement to our operations in 
the U.S., the largest, most-advanced market in the world, is 
necessary if we are to achieve the targets of the Mid-Long 
Term Management Plan. We are therefore focusing 
investment on U.S. operating centers to improve marketing 
and product development and to train personnel.

Achieving the Goals of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan  sss

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from
March 20 to December 31.

The Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems management team



Major Products and Market Share

Automatic Blood Cell Counter plus CRP
Blood tests are essential for assessing the health of people and animals. 
These analyzers check red and white blood cell counts, as well as hemo-
globin concentrations and platelet counts.

Automatic Hematology Analyzers

Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems
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HORIBA seeks to raise sales and earnings in the in-vitro diagnostics market by 
enhancing its product line and optimizing regional strategies (product, sales and 
service), based on global product strategies.

Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA, Ltd.
*Segment sales include sales of testing reagents.

Hematology analysis in a hospital

Results for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 and 
Business Strategies
Sales of large hematology analyzers increased in the European and American markets, 
while sales of testing reagents also expanded, reflecting strong growth in the number 
of analyzers in use. In the domestic market, last spring revision of the fees for 
treatment paid to medical institutions under the medical insurance system caused 
concern about a potential negative impact on the segment’s results.  In retrospect, the 
impact was small.  Meanwhile, the shortened fiscal year effect on sales was countered 
by strong sales of small, automatic blood cell and CRP counters. Resulting 
consolidated net sales for the segment were up 12%, and the operating income ratio 
was 1.5 point higher than it was in the previous fiscal year ended March 20, 2006.

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2007
The segment will continue to focus on expanding sales of high-end hematology 
analyzers and clinical chemistry analyzers which will increase the number in use 
within the market. We also plan to expand reagent manufacturing facilities at 
HORIBA ABX SAS in France in response to higher demand.

Product Development in the In-vitro Diagnostics Analysis Market

Test category Clinical chemistry
Hematology

Immunology

¥1 trillion

Coagulation

¥0.1 trillion

Hematology analyzers

¥0.2 trillion ¥1 trillionMarket scale

Large hospitals
testing centers

Medium-and
small-sized hospitals

Private practitioners

Hospital units and
surgery rooms (POCT)

Hospitals

Hematology
analyzer systems

(Developed by HORIBA)

Clinical chemistry
(Developed by HORIBA)

Blood sugar
measurement systems

(purchased from Sankyo Co., Ltd.),
small-sized clinical chemistry

analyzers

Coagulation
reagents
(BIOPEP)

CRP counters for
asthma medication

(for inflammation diagnosis)

Middle- and
small-sized

hematology analyzers

Field in which
HORIBA
exhibits
strength

These are the first counters in the world to 
simultaneously measure blood cell counts 
and C-Reactive Protein (CRP), which the 
body produces in response to internal in-
flammation, thus facilitating faster and more 
accurate diagnosis.

Segment
sales

8%

World 
market share

100%

World 
market share

8%

Segment
sales

70%

Estimated Size of In-Vitro Diagnostics Analysis Market 
by Region 2010

Note: The above market size indication is estimated by HORIBA, Ltd.
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14,350
14,391

14,764
18,183

20,111
18,039 27,000

Net Sales and Operating Income Ratio
(Millions of yen/%)

-6.6%

1.1%

5.7%

14.6%

13.8%

19.7%

13.0%

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12 2010/12
(Target)

Share of
net sales

17%

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales 

Operating Income

2006/3 2006/12 Change

18,039

2,491

20,111

3,955

+11.5%

+58.8%

Results 

(Millions of yen)

Net Sales

Operating Income

27,000

3,500

Targets for the Mid-Long Term
Management Plan  (2010/12)

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems

The semiconductor manufacturing equipment market, which 
moved into a recovery mode in the second half of 2005, enjoyed 
its best year ever in 2006, surpassing even the IT bubble 
experienced in 2000. This was the result of rapid expansion 
centering on large-scale investment in DRAM and NAND flash 
memory production facilities that began at the start of the year.

The Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment 
achieved significantly higher sales during the fiscal period under 
review. This was partly due to the commencement of operations 
at the Aso Factory in Kumamoto prefecture, which completed 
capacity expansion in October 2005 to become the segment’s 
main production facility. As a result, the segment was able to 
manufacture significantly higher volumes of its mainstay mass 
flow controllers and other fluid control devices as well as 
chemical monitors for cleaning equipment. This expanded 
manufacturing in combination with market expansion and a 
higher market share, particularly in the U.S., contributed to the 
much higher sales. 

During 2007, the semiconductor manufacturing equipment 
market is expected to experience further expansion, particularly 
in equipment for memory production. The launch of the new 
Windows Vista PC operating system, together with increasingly 
sophisticated mobile phones, higher-capacity digital cameras 
and MP3 players are all expected to fuel this growth. However, 
prices for semiconductor memories and digital home electronics 
are falling rapidly, and as a consequence, manufacturers have 

become increasingly demanding with regard to the performance, 
cost and lead times of semiconductor manufacturing equipment. 
To respond to this market situation, the segment is planning a 
number of initiatives: in its after-sales service operations it is 
opening a support center to cover the south of Taiwan, as well 
as increasing the number of personnel in South Korea and 
establishing additional support center in Shanghai, China. On 
the product development front, it is opening up a technology 
center in Silicon Valley California to augment the existing centers 
in Kyoto and Nevada in the U.S.. The new center will serve as a 
base for developing measurement techniques that can 
contribute cutting edge semiconductor technology. In these 
ways, the segment is implementing a whole host of proactive 
measures to increase the pace of business development in 
2007 and, ultimately, to increase profits.

Achieving the Goals of the Mid-Long Term Management Plan  sss

Review of Operations by Business SegmentBuilding a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end from
March 20 to December 31.

The Semiconductor Instruments & Systems management team



Results for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 and 
Business Strategies
The segment achieved strong results due to a number of factors, most notably in-
creased demand stemming from the booming semiconductor market and the de-
velopment of products meeting the specific needs of our customers. A successful 
ramping up of production at the Aso Factory in Kumamoto prefecture also contrib-
uted to the segment’s performance. By product, sales of the segment’s mainstay 
mass flow controllers, used in semiconductor manufacturing equipment, were sig-
nificantly higher in Japan and North America. The higher sales resulted from ex-
panded demand and greater market share. Sales of chemical concentration moni-
tors also improved due to the increase in demand from manufacturers of cleaning 
equipment.

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2007
The advent of digital differential pressure-type mass flow modules which enable more 
precise gas flow control and the move to 300mm semiconductor wafers has created a 
growing demand for all types of yield-enhancing monitoring systems. In response, the 
segment aims to take advantage of the booming semiconductor market by launching 
products necessary for leading-edge semiconductor processes. New hydrofluoric acid 
concentration monitors for the interconnecting process and ultra-low concentration 
ammonia monitors for the lithography process will enter the market.

Major Products and Market Share

These compact units are used in semicon-
ductor manufacturing to monitor cleaning 
chemical concentrations. They ensure that 
no cleansing fluids are wasted, which opti-
mizes the cleaning process, and helps 
boost production yields.

Chemical Concentration Monitors
These high-precision controllers are used to regulate gas and liquid flow rates 
in semiconductor manufacturing processes such as thin-film formation 
processes. They are thus a key component in the production of high-quality 
semiconductors.

Mass Flow Controllers

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems
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HORIBA seeks to become a leader in gas and liquid flow rate measurement and 
control for semiconductor manufacturing processes by establishing strong positions 
in the analytical and measurement fields for R&D and production equipment.

Comparison of worldwide sales of semiconductor
manufacturing equipment and HORIBA’s Semiconductor
Instruments & Systems segment sales

Sources:
LCD/OLED Manufacturing Equipment Statistical Data (2005 edition)
Semiconductor Equipment Association of Japan
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Note: Market shares quoted are estimates by HORIBA, Ltd.

Product assembly in the clean room

Measurement Solutions in Semiconductor Dry Process
Worldwide sales of semiconductor manufacturing equipment (Left)
HORIBA’s Semiconductor Instruments & Systems segment sales (Right)

Segment
sales

8%

Segment
sales

70%

World 
market share

80%

World 
market share

33%
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As a result of the change in the 
2006 fiscal period for HORIBA, 
Ltd. and key domestic 
subsidiaries, net sales decreased 
compared to the previous fiscal 
period. However, the Analytical 
Instruments & Systems segment 
achieved higher sales—primarily 
to the electronics industry—of 
X-ray Analytical Microscopes 
meeting the requirements of 
European Restriction of 
Hazardous Substances (RoHS) 
Directive. In addition, products in 
the Semiconductor Instruments & 
Systems segment also achieved robust sales reflecting a strong 
semiconductor market.

4,697

India
HORIBA India Private Limited Group locations,

including branch and resident offices

Featured product:

In the analytical and measurement 
equipment market, successful 
products that have become the 
standard in specific countries or 
regions are sometimes difficult to sell 
globally. Success requires a network 
able to provide comprehensive sales, 
service, engineering and other support 
functions in all areas of Asia, Europe, 
and the Americas, and to flexibly 
respond to the needs of local 
customers. At the same time, there is 
a need to improve quality and 
efficiency. This requires unifying on a 
regional basis the services common to 
all divisions, such as accounting and 
finance, legal affairs, intellectual 
property management, human 
resources and IT.

Japan
HORIBA, Ltd.
HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd.
HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd. 
HORIBA ITECH Co., Ltd. 
HORIBA TECHNO SERVICE Co., Ltd.

Korea
HORIBA Korea Ltd. 
HORIBA Automotive
  Test Systems Ltd. 
HORIBA STEC Korea, Ltd.

Singapore
HORIBA Instruments Pte. Ltd.

China
HORIBA Instruments (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 
HORIBA Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Thailand
HORIBA ABX Diagnostics (Thailand) Limited

Asia

This instrument uses X-rays to perform nondestructive elemental analysis. 
Demand from electronic equipment manufacturers in Japan and component 
manufacturers in Asia has in-
creased rapidly, following the en-
actment of the European Restric-
tion of Hazardous Substances 
(RoHS) Directive  in July 2006.

X-ray Analytical Microscope

Regional Overview
In Japan, the central company is HORIBA, Ltd., established in 1953 and 
serving as the head office for the corporate group. Operations have steadily 
expanded. HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd., which concentrates on control devices for 
semiconductor manufacturing, was established in 1974. HORIBA Advanced 
Techno Co., Ltd, specializing in water quality analysis, was established in 
1975. The service division was spun off in 2000 to form HORIBA TECHNO 
SERVICE Co., Ltd. Outside Japan, HORIBA-owned companies were established 
in South Korea in 1988, Singapore in 1997 and China in 2002.

Net Sales in the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006

2,315 employees (including 2,028 in Japan)

40.6
45.6

49.8
56.1

2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

53.8

2006/12

Review of Operations by Geographic SegmentBuilding a Well-Balanced Business Portfolio

Employee Ratio by Region

49%
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43%
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16%
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Net Sales by Business and
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Net Sales (by destination)
(Billions of yen)

35.8

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end 
from March 20 to December 31.
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This in-car instrument measures the exhaust of vehicles while they are 
operating. Developed under license from the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency, this system tests real-time 
emissions while operating on the 
road, a measurement  not possible 
until now. The system also collect data 
on the environmental impact of auto-
mobiles that more accurately reflects 
actual operating conditions.

Group locations,
including branch and resident offices

28.3 27.3
24.9

27.0

2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12

Featured product:

 Europe

Used in testing to verify internal organ 
function by quantifying and analyzing 
blood components including proteins, 
oxygen, lipids, minerals and hormones. 
The analyzer is proving useful for 
diagnosing and assessing treatment 
efficacy for diseases, as well as for early 
discovery and diagnosis of lifestyle-
related illnesses.

Clinical Chemistry AnalyzerRegional Overview
Full-scale business operations in Europe began with the establishment of 
HORIBA Europe GmbH in Germany in 1972, which provided sales and 
service for HORIBA-manufactured products. The product line and marketing 
capacity have been significantly improved in recent years with the addition 
of HORIBA ABX SAS in France in 1996, HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS in France in 
1997, and the automotive development test systems (DTS) business of Carl 
Schenck AG in Germany in September 2005.

Net Sales in the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net sales in Europe benefited from 
a full year's results recorded for 
the DTS business. Meanwhile, the 
Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & 
Systems segment recorded higher 
sales of testing reagents and 
testing equipment such as large 
hematology analyzers and 
medium-sized clinical chemistry 
analyzers. Sales of HORIBA Jobin 
Yvon SAS in France products also 
increased, primarily in cutting-
edge scientific fields.

1,647 employees

France
HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS 
HORIBA ABX SAS
HORIBA France Sarl

Germany
HORIBA Europe GmbH
HORIBA Europe
  Automation Division
  GmbH
HORIBA Automotive
  Test Systems GmbH

Austria
HORIBA GmbH

U.K.
HORIBA Instruments Limited

Group locations,
including branch and resident offices

Featured product:

 Americas

On-Board Emissions Measurement System

Regional Overview
In the Americas, HORIBA established a local corporation in 1972 to conduct 
overseas business activities, including activities both in the U.S. and in 
Europe, and gather market information, and its operations began by 
focusing mainly on emission measurement systems. In 2005, HORIBA 
purchased the DTS business, further bolstering its lineup of products and 
services provided to the large North American automotive industry. Also by 
utilizing the sales and marketing forces of HORIBA ABX SAS (France) and 
HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS (France), stronger sales forces for medical and 
analytical equipments were provided in the Americas.

Net Sales in the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006
In the Automotive Test Systems 
segment, sales were relatively lower 
compared to the previous fiscal 
period, when there was unusually 
high demand due to U.S. 
automotive emission regulations. In 
the Analytical Instruments & 
Systems segment, sales of 
analyzers for measuring sulfur in oil 
were higher to the petroleum 
industry, while in the Semiconductor 
Instruments & Systems segment, 
sales increased for mass flow 
controllers used in semiconductor 
manufacturing equipment.

735 employees

9.6

12.1

17.7

22.5 26.4

2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3 2006/12

Canada
HORIBA Automotive
  Test Systems, Inc.

U.S.A
HORIBA Instruments Incorporated 
HORIBA/STEC Incorporated
HORIBA Jobin Yvon Inc.
HORIBA ABX Inc.
HORIBA Automotive
  Test Systems, Corp.

Brazil
HORIBA ABX Ltda.

Net Sales (by destination)
(Billions of yen)

Net Sales (by destination)
(Billions of yen)

35.835.8

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end 
from March 20 to December 31.

Note: HORIBA changed its fiscal year-end 
from March 20 to December 31.
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Use our corporate culture as a guide for 
all corporate activities

Under HORIBA’s Mid-Long Term Management 
Plan, we aim to make effective use of the 

“invisible values” that do not appear on the 
balance sheet. By enhancing their value, we 
intend to use these values as the basis for 
achieving dramatic improvements in 
profitability and return on investment. To this 
end, we are promoting the following measures:

The HORIBA Motto: “Joy and Fun”
“Joy and Fun” represents our desire to see all employees 

performing work that is rewarding and allows them to lead happy 

and fulfilling lives. We want our people to put “Joy” into their work 

through their own efforts at making the most of the time they 

spend in the workplace.

“Open & Fair” and “a Venture Spirit”
Our policy is to openly provide employees with challenges and 

evaluate their performances with fairness. The goal is to establish 

a transparent corporate culture that encourages creative work 

and prevents improper behavior. To drive us forward, we retain the 

same “a Venture Spirit” that led to our establishment. Through this 

spirit, we will continue to create innovative technologies that 

respond to emerging market needs.

HORIBA believes that by putting this corporate culture into practice 

in our business activities, we can build a win-win relationship with all 

our stakeholders that spurs further growth and development for all 

parties. As a full-line manufacturer of analytical equipment, we will 

continue our contribution to creating sustainable societies and 

uncovering the root causes of a range of environmental and social 

problems by fulfilling our mission of enabling any type of substance 

to be analyzed and measured.

Use our corporate culture 
as a guide for all corporate activities sss

The Core Components of Our Strategy

Increasing the “Invisible Values”
Priority
Measure

Use our corporate culture as a guide 
for all corporate activities

Increase in the HORIBA brand value

Foster the development of people 
with a global perspective

Upgrade capabilities involving technologies

Make CSR and environmental protection part 
of all corporate activities

These Japanese characters mean “Joy and Fun,” and are HORIBA’s 
motto, originally penned by our founder, Dr. Masao Horiba.
“…if we take interest and pride in the work that occupies most of the 
active time in our lives, in the place where we spend the large part of 
each day, then, as a result, our satisfaction with life will increase, and we 
will be able to enjoy our lives even more. Taking interest and pride in our 
work leads us to “Joy and Fun.” (Extract from Corporate Philosophy) 

Security

Health

E
nvironm

ent 

E
ne

rg
y

Brand

Global
 Human

 Resources
Environment

CSRTechnology

Invisible Values

Business Domain

WI
N-
WI
NWIN-WIN

WI
N-
WI
N WIN-WIN

Society Employees

Customers Shareholders

Joy and Fun

Open & Fair
a Venture Spirit

Corporate culture

HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/1218



Increasing the “invisible values” in the HORIBA brand value sss

Increase in the HORIBA brand value

One of the priorities of HORIBA's Mid-Long Term Management Plan is increasing the HORIBA brand value. Striving to meet quantitative 

targets for net sales and earnings is of course also a focus, but at the same time, we are careful to cultivate the “invisible values”—such as 

our corporate culture, people and technical capabilities—that are the source of future earnings and that will ensure HORIBA's durability as 

an enterprise. The HORIBA brand embodies all these “invisible values,” and we are implementing measures to increase our value.

The fiscal year ended March 20, 2006 was a landmark year in which HORIBA celebrated its 

60th anniversary, as well as achieved net sales of ¥100 billion. In the past few years, the 

number of our employees all over the world has increased dramatically as a result of 

acquisitions alliances and the establishment of new operating bases. With the company 

growing in size and conducting its operations on a global scale, it will be necessary to invest 

even greater effort to preserve and nurture the HORIBA corporate culture. This was what 

spurred us to publish the HORIBA Brand Book as the “bible” for the HORIBA group companies, 

enabling our employees to reconfirm their understanding of what the HORIBA brand is, and 

offering a basis for sharing and passing on that understanding. The HORIBA Brand Book was 

published on January 26, 2007 and distributed to about 4,700 employees around the world. 

The HORIBA Brand Book

In addition to the HORIBA mottos “Joy and Fun” 
and “Omoi,” the HORIBA Brand Book also 
includes 36 contributions from HORIBA 
employees, and is available in six languages: 
Japanese, English, French, German, Chinese 
and Korean.

“Omoi”: five pillars to phrase the HORIBA way
“Omoi” means an emotional feeling, passion, thoughts, enthusiasm, desire, aspiration, ambition, commitment, mission, and objective.
We encourage our employees to have the following “Omoi,” which is the essence of acting on “Joy and Fun” through their work. 

Individuality

Technology

Communication

Social Contribution

Internationalization

“Omoi”

To be a part of a collaborative community 
at the forefront of new ideas and creations

To achieve goals and make my life memorable 
by fostering the highest intellectual potential

To reach across the globe to expand learning that captures 
key business developments wherever they occur

To be proud of sharing what I do and what HORIBA delivers

To participate all around and where I can be of help
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HORIBA's Human Resources Development sss

We believe that new concepts and innovations start with people. We also believe that to consistently generate 
corporate value and grow it is necessary for every employee to embrace and practice the HORIBA corporate 
culture, as expressed in the mottos “Joy and Fun,” “Open & Fair” and “a Venture Spirit.”

A workplace could be likened to a theatrical stage. A company must provide the actors—its employees—with 
the opportunity to perform their role in their own way. The stage directors—management—must cast and direct 
these actors to perform a scene (corporate strategy) that expresses the essence of the company’s culture. In 
this way, the company can put on a well-orchestrated and lively performance. And as a result, the 
audience—customers—are satisfied, and the theater owners—shareholders—get a good return on their 
investment. Within this scenario, the company’s ability to produce good actors can make or break its 
performance. At HORIBA, this perception of its employees as being actors on a stage is an intrinsic part of the 
management approach.

What is it?
The “Fun House” is a name for the HORIBA 
training center. Located an hour and a half 
by car from the head office deep in the forest 
in the mountains of Kutsuki, Shiga Prefecture, 
the center gives our people the chance to 
get away from the stresses of the work 
routine and relax as they take part in training. 

Most of the training is conducted by 
HORIBA employees. The rapport 
between students and instructor makes 
for lively discussions, and the instructor 
is also able to learn a great deal from 
being in a teaching position.

Offers a change of venue that allows employees

A Forum for Learning

Participants in training courses come 
from different departments and different 
companies within the HORIBA group 
companies. The Fun House provides a 
forum to extend personal networks in 
HORIBA, encouraging effective 
communication.

A Forum for Networking

The center hosts a variety of 
international meetings, during which the 
days are filled with in-depth debate, and 
the nights with karaoke.

A Forum for
Global Communication

The Company provides the stage; the employees are
the actors who express themselves freely on it.
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A source of
new corporate value

and growth for HORIBA

Develop individuals who
can think outside the box

to reconfirm their “omoi” and experience new insights

What Makes the Fun House Special?

HORIBA was placed among the top 20 companies to work 
for in a survey conducted by the Great Place to Work® 
Institute in Japan, and published in the February 19, 2007 
edition of Nikkei Business magazine.

The definition of a good company to work for according 
to the Great Place to Work® Institute comprises five 
elements: trust, respect, fairness, pride and a sense of 
community. This particular ranking is distinguished by the 
fact that employee responses account for two thirds of the 
points allocated in the assessment process. Worldwide, the 
trend now is toward employee-centric management, on the 
belief that creating a rewarding work environment leads 
ultimately to a more competitive company. The Great Place 
to Work® Institute's ranking is attracting attention as a 
measure of achievement in this regard.

HORIBA Is Among the Best Companies
to Work for in Japan

The Fireplace
People are often inspired with new 
thoughts and ideas while looking at an 
open fire. For this reason, there is a large 
fireplace in the center of the common 
room.  
 
No Lights-Out  
A set “lights-out time” is common practice 
in Japanese training centers, but we 
believe that people should be free to 
manage their own time, allowing them to 
socialize and reflect on what they have 
learned. However, attendance at breakfast 
is compulsory.
 
A First-Class Environment 
With luxuries such as cypress-wood baths, 
heated floors, feather quilts and high-
quality meals, we have taken great care to 
create an environment that offers the 
utmost in off-duty relaxation so that 
training participants can concentrate when 
they are on-duty.
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Increasing the “Invisible Values”

Research and Development Activities
HORIBA conducts R&D activities based on the product 
development flowchart opposite. The most significant feature 
of our R&D process is the system of multiple design reviews, 
which allows us to generate inventions and file patent 
applications in a comprehensive manner.

HORIBA’s policy regarding intellectual property is to file a 
wide range of high-quality patent applications to ensure the 
technological added value that secures market superiority. At 
the same time we actively utilize our own intellectual property 
rights, we respect those of other companies.

Developing Basic Technologies and Products

Upgrade capabilities involving technologies sss

“A Step Ahead in Hi-Tech: HORIBA”
In keeping with this slogan, we consistently pursue the development of original core technologies to support analysis and 
measurement. At the same time, we strive to provide total solutions through the creation of innovative measurement technologies, 
to achieve revolutionary improvements in function, size, and production cost, and to develop new products to help reduce 
the burden on the environment.

Disputes Related to Intellectual Property
HORIBA, Ltd. and its group companies were involved in several disputes related to intellectual property at the end of the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2006, though none of these are likely to have a significant impact on our business. HORIBA takes a 
flexible approach to licensing its intellectual property, in line with its management policies.

Upgrade capabilities involving technologies

Number of HORIBA’s Patent Applications 
& Ratio of R&D Expenses to Net Sales
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6.0

6.1 6.2 196
5.3

Research themes: 94

Product development themes: 22

New
products

New products registered: 9

Minor changes to existing products: 5

Options added to existing products: 1

Number of research and product development themes 
and new products registered annually (HORIBA, Ltd. only)

Semiconductor Automotive Analytical Medical/
Diagnostic

Infrared
Measurement

Gas Flow
Control

Particle-size
Distribution

Analysis

Infra-red measurement technology
Technology for real-time analysis of elements in gases

Particle-size analysis technology
Particle-size and quantity distribution analysis technology

Gas flow control technology
Technology to measure and instantly control the flow of gases

Product Development Committee

Inventions

Registration of Product Development 
and Research Projects

Research and Product Development

Design Review

Registration of New Products

Multiple Design Reviews

Publication in 『Readout』 

* During a design review, the status at each stage of product development, including the 
planning, analysis, design, manufacturing, and inspection processes required for quality 
design and commercialization, are examined to confirm that the project can enter the next 
phase of development.

No. of patent applications Ratio of R&D expenses to net sales
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『　　　　 』 Introduction to 　　　　　 (HORIBA’s Technical Reports)

Readout is a collection of technical reports published to introduce the 
products and technologies created and developed by the HORIBA group 
companies. The title “Read Out” incorporates our hopes as a manufacturer of 
analytical and measurement equipment that the products and technologies 
created and developed by HORIBA will become widely known through this 
publication. The content of Readout is also available online, where entire texts 
can be searched and back issues and articles are available by product type 
or measurement application. In this way Readout helps build a closer 
relationship between the HORIBA group companies and its clients.

Japanese version English version

Readout can be accessed on the Web at the following URLs:
Japanese version http://www.jp.horiba.com/support/tech_info/
English version http://www.jp.horiba.com/support_e/tech_info/

Major Inventions

TENSEC – A Device for Rapid Preparation of Microscope Specimens

Developed through collaboration between HORIBA and Professor 
Kenichi Shimizu of Keio University, TENSEC prepares the surface of 
specimens for observation through electron microscopes or optical 
microscopes in only 10 seconds. Conventional preparation methods 
start by smoothing the surface to be observed, however, the process of 
abrasion often causes damage or contamination. Obtaining a clean 
surface for observation required a high level of expertise. With TENSEC 
it is now possible to conduct extremely precise microscopic 
observations quickly and easily, while the use of low-energy argon 
plasmaNote 1 prevents damage to the specimen. As a result, TENSEC is 
attracting attention as a revolutionary preprocessing device.

Product Details

A Dramatically New Concept

For some time, HORIBA has been selling a product that uses argon 
plasma to perform element profilingNote 2 quickly and simply within 
nanometers of a specimen’s surface. The idea of using the same 
technology to preprocess specimens for observation by microscope was 
the inspiration that spurred the development of a groundbreaking and 
unique product.

The Product Development Process and Future Prospects

Note 1: When argon gas is depressurized and subjected to high-voltage, the result is low-energy plasma that avoids damage to specimens when used with TENSEC. 
Note 2: Element profiling continuously graphs the relative abundance and concentration of each element from the surface of the specimen inwards.

Stainless steel surface

Conventional finishing

After use of TENSEC

20μ
x1K

20μ
x1K

Electron microscopes and optical microscopes are essential for the development of materials and in the defect analysis field, and 
the types of specimens observed are wide-ranging. Looking ahead, HORIBA intends to make the most of the attributes of argon 
plasma to extend its applications to cover all types of specimens. 

We believe that TENSEC’s capacity to ensure a clean specimen surface will make it 
invaluable for research and development purposes. Moreover, we intend to respond 
to the wide-ranging requirements of our customers by continuously honing our 
technologies to facilitate research and development in other ways.

Akihiro Hirano, leader of TENSEC development project
HORIBA, Ltd., Analytical Technology Products R&D Dept.

Contamination makes it difficult to
observe the specimen itself

The composition and structures of
the specimen become clearly visible
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Increasing the “Invisible Values”
Make CSR and environmental
protection part of all corporate activities

HORIBA’s CSR Policy: Promote CSR in the course of day-to-day operationssss

HORIBA conducts its businesses with an emphasis on the key issues of global environment, human health, public safety, and en-
ergy, contributing to the creation of a comfortable and pleasant society.

HORIBA products play a behind-the-scenes part in many aspects of 
our lives, helping to conserve the global environment and ensure our 
health and safety. Our products are used for a wide range of 
purposes, including measuring and analyzing hazardous substances 
in gas emissions and the atmosphere, analyzing the quality of factory 
wastewater, detecting heavy metals or other harmful substances, 
making medical diagnoses through blood analysis, and conducting 
quality control for foods and pharmaceuticals. Our four business 
segments (automotive, analytical (environment/science), medical, 
semiconductor) are, therefore, intimately linked with the key issues of 
the global environment, human health, public safety, and 
energy—areas that are indispensable to providing all forms of life on 
earth with a comfortable and rich existence. We will maintain the 
focus on our core business, continually seek genuine technological 
innovation, and work to provide high-value-added, high-quality 
products and services that will lead to the creation of a comfortable 
and pleasant society.

HORIBA CSR Promotion Committee
In accordance with its “One Company” management principle, 
HORIBA and its major domestic group companies convene the 
HORIBA CSR Promotion Committee. This committee discusses and 
decides on the group's CSR strategies, priority policies and other 
matters.

As part of its environmental education and awareness activities, 
HORIBA regularly holds Head Factory tours and offers classes 
demonstrating scientific experiments for local elementary, junior and 
senior high school students. HORIBA employees actually visit 
schools and other facilities to offer lessons on their premises. They 
use HORIBA products and readily available materials to demonstrate 
experiments, giving easy-to-follow explanations of the effects toxic 
substances have on the environment and on the human body. 
Through these activities, we try to help children understand the 
extent to which environmental issues are linked to their daily lives.

A HORIBA employee giving a lesson at the Kyoto Municipal Science Center For Youth

Compliance and Risk Management Structure 
Compliance Committees have been established under each CSR Promotion Committee. These 
committees work to raise awareness of compliance, as well as discuss and decide on measures 
for promoting compliance. They also investigate, report, and make recommendations for 
rectification regarding matters raised through internal whistle-blowing.

Specific measures include formulating Compliance Management Provisions and Ethical 
Guidelines, strengthening the compliance framework, and introducing an internal whistle-blowing 
system in an effort to either prevent, or quickly detect and rectify, illegal activities. A point-of-
contact to consult with attorneys outside the company has also been established, along with a 
dedicated e-mail address for employees to communicate any compliance-related concerns. 
These and other measures raise awareness of compliance among employees, and help make it a 
part of operations.

In terms of the environment, product quality, and occupational health and safety, in addition to 
formulating internal regulations we have acquired certifications, including ISO 9001 (product quality), 
ISO 14001 (environment), OHSAS 18001 (occupational health and safety), and ISO 13485 
(medical). We have also introduced the Integrated Management System (IMS) to collectively manage 
the required procedures throughout HORIBA group companies. This system will enhance 
decision-making speed and improve operational efficiency, while also furthering risk management.

HORIBA CSR Promotion Structure

HORIBA, Ltd.
CSR Promotion Committee

HORIBA STEC Co., Ltd.
CSR Promotion Committee

HORIBA TECHNO SERVICE Co., Ltd.
CSR Promotion Committee

HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd.
CSR Promotion Committee

Compliance Committee Compliance Committee Compliance Committee Compliance Committee

HORIBA CSR 
Promotion Committee

Head Factory Tours and School Visits

Head Factory tours
(school and other
groups)
Open house tours

Year ended Mar. 2006

46

7

967

405

33

5

614

272

Period ended Dec. 2006 (9 months)

Occupational Health 
and Safety

M
ed

ic
al

Product Quality

Integrated Management Systems

Environm
ent 

ISO-9001

ISO-14001

OHSAS-18001

ISO-13485

Tours/Visits Participants Tours/Visits Participants
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Internal Controls
Internal controls are an important aspect of everyday operations in terms of ensuring fairness, transparency and accountability. In accordance 
with its basic principle of “Open & Fair,” HORIBA works to ensure that business execution by directors and corporate officers is in compliance 
with relevant laws and the Articles of Incorporation, and to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness in operations. To this end, in May 2006 the 
Board of Directors formulated basic principles regarding the creation of an internal control system, aimed at enhancing compliance, risk 
management and other structures.

Currently, in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (the Japanese version of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act), we are making improvements in our internal control system to ensure the accuracy of our financial reporting, and working to provide the 
documentation necessary to establish an even more reliable financial reporting system. We are also taking advantage of the internal controls 
afforded by the creation of documentation to enhance openness and transparency in operations, as well as improve operational efficiency.

Corporate Governance
Under its basic motto of “Open & Fair,” HORIBA pursues transparency in its management, and seeks to maximize its corporate value. To create 
a corporate governance framework on a par with others in the international community, we are strengthening our corporate structures to 
respond quickly to changes in the business environment, enhancing our management oversight functions and compliance framework, as well 
as working to establish mutually beneficial relationships with all stakeholders.

Governance Structure

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining basic management policies and strategies and overseeing business execution. HORIBA 
has appointed one outside director and two outside auditors as a means of enhancing the quality and transparency of management decisions 
and improving management oversight functions, as well as bolstering its corporate governance framework.
   Furthermore, a corporate officer system was introduced in June 1998, under which business execution is entrusted by directors to corporate 
officers, who in turn give specific orders to the general manager of each business segment and monitor activities.

Governance Structure

General Meeting of Shareholders

Independent
 Auditor

Corporate Philosophy and Ethical Guidelines

Three Auditors
 (two outside)

Business execution Monitoring

President

Internal Auditing

Integrated Management
 System (IMS)

Corporate Officers

Business Segments Leaders
(General Manager)

Board of Directors

Five Directors
 (one outside)

Management decision-
making/supervision Management oversight Management oversight

Board of Auditors

Operations Committee

Management Committee
by Business Segment

HORIBA CSR Promotion Committee HORIBA, Ltd. CSR Promotion Committee Compliance Committees

Internal controls

Litigation, exports, 
legal affairs, 
public-sector grants, 
audits of subsidiaries’
management, etc. 

HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/12 25



Six-year Summary
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
The years ended March 20, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006; and the year ended December 31, 2006

For the Year:   

Net sales

Operating costs and expenses

Operating income

Income before income taxes

Income taxes

Net income (loss)

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Research and development expenses

   

   

At Year-End:   

Total assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Net assets

Per Share Information:   

Net income (loss)

Net assets

Cash dividends

   

Financial Ratios:   

Return on assets (%)   

Return on equity (%)   

Inventory turnover (days)

Price-earning ratio (times)

Shareholders' equity ratio (%)   

Interest coverage ratio (times)

Dividend payout ratio (%)

¥74,468 
71,921 
2,547 

464 
1,508 

（1,071）
3,137 
3,381 
4,336 

¥98,766 
19,279 
40,063 

¥  （34.47）
1,293.42 

8.50 

（1.1）
（2.7）

95 
（26.0）

40.6 
3.0 

30.9 

¥ 78,501 
73,027 

5,474 
3,119 
2,161 

786 
3,444 
2,915 
4,044 

¥100,542 
19,000 
40,144 

¥ 22.21 
1,293.30 

14.50 

0.8 
2.0 
87 

34.4 
39.9 

8.2 
40.8 

¥85,073 
78,223 

6,850 
4,780 
2,574 
2,074 
3,501 
3,037 
5,129 

¥92,657 
18,841 
43,348 

¥ 62.90 
1,350.31 

10.00 

2.2 
5.0 
81 

21.9 
46.8 
15.5 
30.3 

¥92,492 
83,119 

9,373 
6,105 
2,290 
3,524 
3,956 
2,944 
5,636 

¥99,913 
18,481 
52,263 

¥ 98.33 
1,415.75 

16.00 

3.7 
7.4 
82 

19.8 
52.3 
25.4 
41.8 

¥116,099 
104,392 

11,707 
10,588 

4,028 
6,510 
5,059 
3,246 
6,136 

¥129,236 
21,700 
72,375 

¥   154.23 
1,710.75 

26.00 

5.2 
9.4 
92 

28.5 
56.0 
23.7 
30.0 

$974,721 
876,434 

98,287 
88,893 
33,818 
54,655 
42,473 
27,252 
51,515 

$1,085,014 
182,185 
607,632 

$  1.29 
14.36 

0.22 

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/12

¥105,665 
94,390 
11,275 
10,748 

4,214 
6,473 
5,664 
3,173 
6,553 

¥119,976 
20,223 
65,446 

¥   154.27 
1,548.08 

28.00 

5.9 
11.0 

85 
23.9 
54.6 
34.2 
33.8 

2006/3 2006/12

Notes: 1. The U.S. dollar amounts are provided solely for convenience at the rate of ¥119.11 to US$1.00, the rate prevailing on December 31, 2006.
2. Effective for the year ended March 20, 2002, the Company adopted the revised accounting standards for financial instruments and employees' retirement benefits. 
3. Effective for the year ended March 20, 2003, the Company adopted the revised accounting standard for per share information. The amounts in the year ended March 

20, 2002 have not been restated.
4. Effective for the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the revised accounting standard for presentation of net assets in the balance sheet. 

The amounts in prior years have not been restated.
5. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the accounting term for the Company and HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd. was only 9 months and 11 days and that for 

HORIBA STEC Co., Ltd. was only 9 months as a result of the fiscal year-end changing to December 31.

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars  (Note 1) 

(Notes 2, 3) U.S. dollars  (Note 1) 

Computation:
Net income per share (¥) = 100 x (net income - projected bonuses to directors and corporate auditors)*

                         / (average number of shares issued and outstanding in the fiscal period, corrected for treasury stock)
Net assets per share (¥) = (shareholders’ equity - projected bonuses to directors and corporate auditors)*

                         / (number of shares issued and outstanding, corrected for treasury stock)
Return on assets (ROA, %) = 100 x net income / average total assets in prior fiscal period
Return on equity (ROE, %) = 100 x net income / average shareholders’ equity in prior fiscal period
Inventory turnover (days) = average inventory in fiscal period / daily sales
Price-earnings ratio (PER, times) = share price at end of fiscal period / net income per share
Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) = 100 x shareholders’ equity / total assets
Interest coverage ratio (times) = (operating income + interest and dividend income) / interest expense and note discount fees 
Dividend payout ratio (%) = 100 x dividends paid / net income (nonconsolidated)

*Directors' and corporate auditors' bonuses for the year ended December 31, 2006 have been recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Note: All years referred to in this annual report are fiscal years. For example, 2006/3 refers to the fiscal year ended March 20, 2006, and 2006/12 
refers to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. 
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The global economy was strong in the year ended December 
31, 2006, with continued economic expansion in the U.S. 
centered on personal consumption, despite surging crude oil 
prices and higher interest rates giving some cause for 
concern. There was also robust growth in Asia against a 
backdrop of growing demand in China, India and elsewhere. 
The Japanese economy expanded gradually, supported by 
increased capital investment accompanying higher corporate 
earnings, as well as increasing exports, which combined to 
outweigh the rise in raw material prices. In the foreign 
currency exchange markets, the yen depreciated against the 
U.S. dollar and euro compared with the previous year, 
weakening still further at the year’s end.   

In the analytical and measurement instruments industry, 
demand grew strongly on the back of heightened activity in 
semiconductor-related markets worldwide, private-sector 
capital expenditure centering on a variety of environmental 
protection initiatives, and the expansion of emerging markets, 
mainly in Asia. However, the downward trend in prices 
continued as competition intensified. 

Within this context, HORIBA launched its Mid-Long Term 
Management Plan during the fiscal period under review. The 
plan targets net sales of ¥150 billion, an operating income 
ratio of at least 10% and ROE (return on equity) of 11% or 
more in the year ending December 31, 2010. To achieve the 
plan’s targets, HORIBA took steps to strengthen its brand in 
analytical and measurement instruments markets. Initiatives 
included using its unique corporate culture—encapsulated in 
the mottos “Joy and Fun” and “Open & Fair”—as a guide for 
all corporate activities and fostering the development of 
people with a global perspective. 

As a result of such initiatives, HORIBA’s net sales were 
higher year on year, over ¥100 billion, and operating income 
and net income also increased. This was despite the fact that, 
as a result of a change in fiscal year-end*1, the relevant fiscal 
periods for HORIBA, Ltd. and key domestic subsidiaries were 
shorter than before, at approximately 9 months. 

*1. As a result of the fiscal year-end changing from March 20 
to December 31 during the fiscal period under review, the 
following irregular fiscal periods have arisen: 9 months 
and 11 days for HORIBA, Ltd. and HORIBA Advanced 
Techno Co., Ltd.; and 9 months for HORIBA STEC, Co., 
Ltd.  

Net Sales 
Consolidated net sales increased by ¥10,434 million, or 9.9%, 
year on year to a record ¥116,099 million.   

Business Segments 
Automotive Test Systems 
Segment sales rose 10.2% to ¥37,945 million.  This was the 
first year that the automotive development test systems 
(DTS) business acquired from Germany’s Carl Schenck AG 
in September 2005 was integrated into HORIBA’s existing 
engine measurement operations; revenues benefited by ¥8.8 
billion from the full year’s sales booked for the DTS business.  
By geographic region*2, sales were down 15.0% in Japan 
and other Asian countries, down 3.4% in the Americas and 
up 64.3% in Europe. 
Analytical Instruments & Systems 
Segment sales rose 7.3% to ¥35,054 million.  Sales of X-ray 
analyzers for Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 
(WEEE) and Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) 
directives were strong in Japan and Asia.  In addition, there 
was greater demand for sulfur-in-oil analyzers in the U.S. 
and for stack gas analyzers in Japan.  Also, HORIBA Jobin 
Yvon SAS in France, which has a strong position in 
nanotechnology measurement, expanded sales to 
cutting-edge scientific fields using its advanced technical 
capabilities.  By geographic region*2, sales were down 8.0% 
in Japan and other Asian countries, up 43.1% in the 
Americas and up 18.2% in Europe. 
Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems 
Segment sales rose 12.1% to ¥22,989 million.  Sales of 
large sized hematology analyzers increased in the European 
and American markets.  In addition, sales of testing 
reagents grew, reflecting strong growth in the number of 
analyzers in use.  In the domestic market, sales of small 
sized automatic blood cell counters plus CRPs also 
increased.  By geographic region*2, sales were down 1.7% 
in Japan and other Asian countries and up 15.3% in Europe. 
Semiconductor Instruments & Systems 
Segment sales increased 11.5% to ¥20,111 million.  This 
increase reflected higher Japanese and North American 
sales of HORIBA’s mainstay product, mass flow controllers 
used in semiconductor production equipment, supported by a 
buoyant semiconductor market and greater market share. 
Sales of chemical concentration monitors also increased due 
to flourishing demand from manufacturers of cleaning 
equipment.  By geographic region*2, sales were down 1.9% 
in Japan and other Asian countries, up 80.6% in the 
Americas and up 25.9% in Europe. 

*2. Geographic segmentation is based on the region where 
sales occur.   

Average foreign exchange rates applied in accounting 
procedures reflected a weakening of the yen against the U.S. 
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dollar from ¥110.25 to ¥116.37 and against the euro from 
¥136.91 to ¥146.20.  If the exchange rates applicable to the 
year ended March 20, 2006 had been applied to the results 
for the year ended December 31, 2006, consolidated net 
sales would have totaled ¥110,584 million.  Thus, the yen’s 
depreciation lifted sales by ¥5,515 million. 

Cost of Sales, SG&A Expenses and Operating Income 
Consolidated cost of sales increased by ¥5,770 million to 
¥66,510 million.  The cost of sales ratio was 57.3%, a 0.2 
percentage point improvement from the previous year.  
While the ratio deteriorated as a result of low profitability in 
the DTS business, positive factors included comprehensive 
cost-cutting measures, such as integrated group-wide joint 
purchasing from suppliers and the success of measures to 
increase production at the Aso Factory of HORIBA STEC, 
Co., Ltd., which was expanded in October 2005.  Although 
the cost of sales increased by ¥5,770 million year on year, 
foreign exchange movements increased this amount by 
¥3,138 million. Excluding this impact, cost of sales increased 
by ¥2,632 million. 

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses 
increased by ¥4,232 million to ¥37,882 million, reflecting 
amortization expense relating to goodwill in the DTS 
business, investment in new product development and an 
increase in marketing expenses.  The ratio of SG&A 
expenses to net sales increased by 0.8 percentage points to 
32.6%.  The portion of the ¥4,232 million increase 
attributable to exchange rate movements was ¥1,687 million. 
Excluding this impact, SG&A expenses rose ¥2,545 million. 

As a result, consolidated operating income increased by 
¥432 million, or 3.8%, year on year to ¥11,707 million.  The 
operating income ratio deteriorated by 0.6 percentage points 
from 10.7% to 10.1%. 

Business Segments 
Automotive Test & Systems 
Segment operating income declined by 43.5% to ¥3,680 
million.  This reflected a number of factors, including 
currently low profitability in the DTS business, amortization 
expense relating to goodwill on the acquisition of this 
business, investment in new product development and an 
increase in marketing expenses 
Analytical Instruments & Systems 
Segment operating income rose by 101.8% to ¥2,668 million 
due to higher sales and increased effectiveness in mass 
production. 
Medical/Diagnostic Instruments & Systems 
Segment operating income rose by 47.3% to ¥1,404 million 
due to increased sales of highly profitable testing reagents. 

Semiconductor Instruments & Systems 
Segment operating income rose by 58.8% to ¥3,955 million 
due to higher sales and effectiveness in mass production 
resulting from increased production at the Aso Factory of 
HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd., which was expanded in October 
2005.

Net Income 
The net foreign exchange gain decreased by ¥343 million, 
reflecting exchange losses at European subsidiaries and 
others due to the euro’s rise against the U.S. dollar.  Net 
interest expense increased by ¥45 million due to additional 
interest expenses accompanying increases in loans and 
other factors.  

Special losses were down significantly from the year 
ended March 20, 2006, when HORIBA recorded a provision 
for retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors. In 
addition, the effective tax rate decreased.  

As a result, while income before income taxes decreased 
by ¥160 million, or 1.5%, to ¥10,588 million, net income 
increased by ¥37 million, or 0.6%, to ¥6,510 million. 

Financial Position 
Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2006 were 
¥129,236 million, up ¥9,260 million from March 20, 2006, and 
total current assets rose by ¥7,000 million to ¥92,760 million. 
The main factors contributing to the increase included a 
¥5,077 million rise in trade notes and accounts receivable 
stemming mainly from higher sales and a ¥3,674 million 
increase in inventories reflecting higher procurement levels in 
response to higher shipment volumes.  Total fixed assets 
increased by ¥2,260 million to ¥36,476 million.  Net property, 
plant and equipment increased by ¥1,477 million to ¥21,700 
million due mainly to HORIBA ABX SAS in France acquiring 
assets for leasing and the acquisition of buildings and other 
assets by HORIBA, Ltd.  Intangibles rose by ¥282 million to 
¥5,744 million primarily due to investment related to the 
introduction of the new, unified enterprise resource planning 
(ERP) system. 

Total consolidated liabilities were ¥56,861 million, up 
¥2,491 million.  One key contributing factor was a ¥1,899 
million increase in trade notes and accounts payable to 
¥14,961 million, reflecting higher procurement in response to 
higher shipment volumes.  Another major factor was a 
¥2,357 million increase in interest-bearing liabilities to 
¥16,223 million due primarily to additional borrowing from 
financial institutions by subsidiaries in Europe and the U.S. to 
provide funds following acquisition of the DTS business. 

Total consolidated net assets amounted to ¥72,375 
million, up ¥6,929 million.  The main factors contributing to 
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the increase were a ¥4,960 million increase in retained 
earnings and increases in common stock and capital surplus 
of ¥169 million due to new stock issues. 

Cash Flows 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
Net cash provided by operating activities totaled ¥3,770 
million. This was due mainly to ¥10,588 million in income 
before income taxes, ¥3,246 million in depreciation and 
amortization and a ¥985 million increase in trade notes and 
accounts payable, against ¥5,129 million for income taxes 
paid, a ¥3,023 million increase in trade notes and accounts 
receivable and a ¥2,208 million increase in inventories.
Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
Net cash used in investing activities totaled ¥4,519 million. 
This was due primarily to ¥3,559 million in payments for the 
purchase of property, plant and equipment, and ¥1,453 
million in payments for the purchase of intangibles. Moreover, 
HORIBA, Ltd. invested an additional ¥203 million in HORIBA 
Korea Ltd. to convert it into a wholly owned subsidiary and 
¥104 million to acquire shares in HORIBA Korea Co., Ltd. 
Both companies are based in South Korea. 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
Net cash provided by financing activities totaled ¥1,315 
million. This was due primarily to ¥1,396 million from an 
increase in long-term debt, ¥778 million from reimbursement 
of funds for the redemption of convertible bonds and ¥338 
million in proceeds from the issue of new shares due to the 
exercise of stock acquisition rights. The above cash inflows 
outweighed a ¥1,253 million outflow for the payment of cash 
dividends.  As a result, there was a net increase of ¥789 
million in cash and cash equivalents to ¥15,673 million.

Dividend Policy 
HORIBA’s basic policy regarding dividends is to maintain its 
standard payout ratio system in which the total dividend 
payment amount is equal to 30% of the non-consolidated net 
income of HORIBA, Ltd.*3, with retained earnings allocated to 
reinvestment for continued growth. As for earnings of group 
companies, HORIBA, Ltd. receives a certain proportion of the 
net income of each group company as a dividend, so 
dividend payments are in effect made on consolidated 
earnings. 
*3. A portion of extraordinary gains and/or losses may be 

excluded from the calculation of the payout ratio.

Major Business Risks 
1. Risks Associated with International Business 

Activities 
HORIBA conducts business activities in the U.S., Europe, 

Asia and other countries around the world. Major risks 
associated with the entry into these overseas markets are 
listed below.  These risks could affect HORIBA’s financial 
position and business results: 
(1) Business Risks 
Risks include sudden shifts in economic conditions or in 
product supply and demand, sudden changes in retail prices 
due to competition, regulatory trends in the environmental 
field and delays in development of new products.  (See 
page 7 for risks specific to each business.) 

(2) Risks Associated with International Business Activities 
Risks include wide fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, 
changes in laws, regulations or tax systems, social 
disruptions such as terrorism or war and other economic, 
social, political or similar risks. 

Especially for fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, 
HORIBA promotes local production and supply and employs 
foreign exchange forward contracts within the limits of the 
balance of foreign currency denominated receivables and 
payables related to import and export transactions to 
minimize foreign exchange risks.  However, fluctuations in 
foreign exchange rates could have an impact when financial 
statements prepared in local currencies are translated into 
Japanese yen for the consolidated financial statements, and 
a major change in foreign exchange rates beyond our 
estimates could affect our financial condition and business 
performance. 

2. Compensation for Product Liability 
HORIBA conducts optimum quality control for its products 
and services and strives to maintain the highest standard of 
reliability.  Nevertheless, there is always a possibility of 
recalls or litigation arising from unforeseen defects.  
HORIBA carries insurance for product liability compensation, 
but there can be no guarantee that this insurance would 
cover the full amount of any unforeseen damages.  Such 
circumstances could have an affect on HORIBA’s financial 
condition and business performance. 

3. Changes in Performance or Financial Position 
Associated with Acquisitions or Alliances 

HORIBA has actively promoted corporate acquisitions and 
alliances to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of its 
business operations. HORIBA conducts complete and 
diligent investigations when making acquisitions and forming 
alliances in order to avoid a negative impact on earnings or 
cash flow.  However, it is possible that HORIBA’s financial 
condition and business performance could be affected if an 
acquisition or alliance did not proceed in accordance with 
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initial plans. 

4. Shifts in the Market Prices of Securities Holdings or 
Other Assets 

HORIBA holds shares in its major alliance partners and other 
companies as part of its technology and business strategies 
for the future. In recent years, HORIBA has recorded losses 
on the revaluation of several investment securities due to the 
price of shares declining as a result of a downturn in 
business performance.  In consideration of such 
circumstances, HORIBA’s acquisitions and sales of 
investment securities are carefully investigated by the Board 
of Directors, the market price of shares is reported to top 
management on a timely basis and the purpose for holding 
the investment securities is properly reviewed.  Also, 
HORIBA implemented impairment accounting in the year 
ended March 20, 2005, before legally required.  However, if 
further declines in the market price or profitability of land, 
buildings or other assets occur in the future, there may be a 
negative impact on the financial condition and business 
performance of HORIBA. 

5. Reversal of Deferred Tax Assets Resulting from 
Changes in Systems or Accounting Policies 

HORIBA considers the deferred tax assets recorded at the 
end of the current period under review to be fully recoverable 
with future earnings (taxable income), but it is possible that a 
reversal of a portion of these assets will be required as a 
result of systemic changes. 

6. Repairs of Facilities Following Natural Disasters and 
Associated Delays in Delivery, etc. 

HORIBA produces products in Japan, Europe (France, 
Germany), the U.S., Asia (China, South Korea) and other 
locations.  In the case of a major earthquake or other 
natural disaster, HORIBA may incur substantial costs for 
repair of manufacturing facilities, etc., or losses may be 
incurred due to delays in shipments or other factors.  In 
such circumstances, there is a possibility of a negative 
impact on HORIBA’s financial condition and business 
performance. 

7. Delays in the Development of New Products 
HORIBA’s business field, measuring instruments, is 
extremely specialized and requires high levels of technical 
capability.  HORIBA, therefore, invests large sums in 
product development.  However, it is possible that expected 
results will not be realized due to unforeseen circumstances. 

8. Risks Concerning Intellectual Property Rights 
HORIBA possesses a wide range of intellectual property 
rights related to the products it manufactures, including 
patents, trademarks and expertise, which give it superiority in 
competitiveness.  HORIBA exercises all possible caution 
regarding the management of these intellectual property 
rights, but in the case of infringement by a third party, it is 
possible that HORIBA will be unable to attain its expected 
earnings.  There is also a possibility of disputes over 
intellectual property rights with other companies.  Such 
circumstances may negatively affect HORIBA’s financial 
condition and business performance.
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ASSETS

Consolidated Balance Sheets
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
At March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$68,080 

6,188 

 

369 

125,237 

76,291 

18,051 

12,467 

2,519 

9,747 

66,443 

385,392 

61,934 

13,693 

5,541 

5,919 

4,903 

477,382 

- 

98,556 

154,857 

317,891 

17,547 

18,898 

(151)

607,598 

34 

607,632 

$1,085,014 

¥8,109 

737 

44 

14,917 

9,087 

2,150 

1,485 

300 

1,161 

7,914 

45,904 

7,377 

1,631 

660 

705 

584 

56,861 

- 

11,739 

18,445 

37,864 

2,090 

2,251 

(18)

72,371 

4 

72,375 

¥129,236 

¥6,747 

452 

45 

13,017 

8,914 

3,121 

2,900 

- 

1,025 

8,157 

44,378 

 

6,667 

1,462 

618 

638 

607 

54,370 

160 

11,570 

18,276 

32,904 

1,920 

850 

(74)

65,446 

- 

65,446 

¥119,976 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

$131,584 

356,687 

(7,741)

17 

259,819 

20,502 

17,908 

778,776 

56,561 

152,019 

98,304 

5,214 

93,082 

405,180 

(222,995)

182,185 

45,664 

898 

7,439 

(688)

22,516 

75,829 

13,240 

34,984 

48,224 

$1,085,014 

¥15,673 

42,485 

(922)

2 

30,947 

2,442 

2,133 

92,760 

6,737 

18,107 

11,709 

621 

11,087 

48,261 

(26,561)

21,700 

5,439 

107 

886 

(82)

2,682 

9,032 

1,577 

4,167 

5,744 

¥129,236 

¥14,884 

37,408 

(880)

- 

27,273 

2,742 

4,333 

85,760 

6,618 

17,343 

10,183 

87 

10,159 

44,390 

(24,167)

20,223 

5,277 

120 

671 

(82)

2,545 

8,531 

2,404 

3,058 

5,462 

¥119,976 

Current Assets:

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Trade notes and accounts receivable

 Allowance for doubtful receivables

 Marketable securities (Note 3)

 Inventories (Note 4)

 Deferred tax assets (Note 14)

 Other current assets

  Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 5):

 Land

 Buildings and structures

 Machinery, equipment and vehicles

 Construction in progress

 Other property, plant and equipment

  Total

 Accumulated depreciation

  Net property, plant and equipment

Investments and Other Non-current Assets:

 Investment securities (Note 3)

 Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

 Deferred tax assets (Note 14)

 Allowance for doubtful accounts

 Other investments and other assets

  Total

Intangibles:

 Goodwill

 Other intangibles

  Total

Total Assets

Current Liabilities:

 Short-term loans payable (Note 5)

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)

 Trade notes and accounts payable:

  Affiliated companies

  Other

 Accounts payable-other

 Accrued income taxes

 Accrued bonuses to employees

 Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

 Reserve for product warranty

 Other current liabilities

  Total current liabilities

Long-term Debt (Note 5)

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Note 8)

Directors’ and Corporate Auditors’ Retirement Benefits

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Note 14)

Other Non-current Liabilities

 Total liabilities

Contingent Liabilities (Note 12)

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Assets (Notes 2(t), 9):

 Common stock

  Authorized - 100,000,000 shares

  Issued and outstanding - 42,100,053 shares (excluding treasury stock) at 2006/3

  Issued and outstanding - 42,303,816 shares (excluding treasury stock) at 2006/12

 Capital surplus

 Retained earnings

 Net unrealized holding gains on securities

 Foreign currency translation adjustments

 Treasury stock

  (44,699 shares at 2006/3 and  10,936 shares at 2006/12)

  Total

 Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries

  Net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets
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ASSETS

Consolidated Balance Sheets
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
At March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$68,080 

6,188 

 

369 

125,237 

76,291 

18,051 

12,467 

2,519 

9,747 

66,443 

385,392 

61,934 

13,693 

5,541 

5,919 

4,903 

477,382 

- 

98,556 

154,857 

317,891 

17,547 

18,898 

(151)

607,598 

34 

607,632 

$1,085,014 

¥8,109 

737 

44 

14,917 

9,087 

2,150 

1,485 

300 

1,161 

7,914 

45,904 

7,377 

1,631 

660 

705 

584 

56,861 

- 

11,739 

18,445 

37,864 

2,090 

2,251 

(18)

72,371 

4 

72,375 

¥129,236 

¥6,747 

452 

45 

13,017 

8,914 

3,121 

2,900 

- 

1,025 

8,157 

44,378 

 

6,667 

1,462 

618 

638 

607 

54,370 

160 

11,570 

18,276 

32,904 

1,920 

850 

(74)

65,446 

- 

65,446 

¥119,976 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

$131,584 

356,687 

(7,741)

17 

259,819 

20,502 

17,908 

778,776 

56,561 

152,019 

98,304 

5,214 

93,082 

405,180 

(222,995)

182,185 

45,664 

898 

7,439 

(688)

22,516 

75,829 

13,240 

34,984 

48,224 

$1,085,014 

¥15,673 

42,485 

(922)

2 

30,947 

2,442 

2,133 

92,760 

6,737 

18,107 

11,709 

621 

11,087 

48,261 

(26,561)

21,700 

5,439 

107 

886 

(82)

2,682 

9,032 

1,577 

4,167 

5,744 

¥129,236 

¥14,884 

37,408 

(880)

- 

27,273 

2,742 

4,333 

85,760 

6,618 

17,343 

10,183 

87 

10,159 

44,390 

(24,167)

20,223 

5,277 

120 

671 

(82)

2,545 

8,531 

2,404 

3,058 

5,462 

¥119,976 

Current Assets:

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Trade notes and accounts receivable

 Allowance for doubtful receivables

 Marketable securities (Note 3)

 Inventories (Note 4)

 Deferred tax assets (Note 14)

 Other current assets

  Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 5):

 Land

 Buildings and structures

 Machinery, equipment and vehicles

 Construction in progress

 Other property, plant and equipment

  Total

 Accumulated depreciation

  Net property, plant and equipment

Investments and Other Non-current Assets:

 Investment securities (Note 3)

 Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

 Deferred tax assets (Note 14)

 Allowance for doubtful accounts

 Other investments and other assets

  Total

Intangibles:

 Goodwill

 Other intangibles

  Total

Total Assets

Current Liabilities:

 Short-term loans payable (Note 5)

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)

 Trade notes and accounts payable:

  Affiliated companies

  Other

 Accounts payable-other

 Accrued income taxes

 Accrued bonuses to employees

 Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

 Reserve for product warranty

 Other current liabilities

  Total current liabilities

Long-term Debt (Note 5)

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Note 8)

Directors’ and Corporate Auditors’ Retirement Benefits

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Note 14)

Other Non-current Liabilities

 Total liabilities

Contingent Liabilities (Note 12)

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Assets (Notes 2(t), 9):

 Common stock

  Authorized - 100,000,000 shares

  Issued and outstanding - 42,100,053 shares (excluding treasury stock) at 2006/3

  Issued and outstanding - 42,303,816 shares (excluding treasury stock) at 2006/12

 Capital surplus

 Retained earnings

 Net unrealized holding gains on securities

 Foreign currency translation adjustments

 Treasury stock

  (44,699 shares at 2006/3 and  10,936 shares at 2006/12)

  Total

 Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries

  Net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

33HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/12



Consolidated Statements of Income
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

Net Sales (Note 15)

Operating Costs and Expenses:

 Cost of sales

 Selling, general and administrative

  Total operating costs and expenses

Operating Income (Note 15)

Other Income (Expenses):

 Interest and dividend income

 Interest expense

 Foreign exchange gains (losses), net

 Gain on sales of investment securities

 Gain on insurance, net of related loss

 Gain on settlement of license

 Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on impairment of fixed assets (Note 2(m))

 Retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors

 Loss on disposal of inventories

 Loss on valuation of investment securities

 Loss on write-down of inventories

 Other, net

  Total other expenses, net

Income before Income Taxes

Income Taxes (Note 14):

 Current

 Deferred

  Total income taxes

Minority Interest in Earnings of Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Income

  

  

  

Per Share Information:

 Net income - basic

 Net income - diluted

 Cash dividends

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Common Stock
 Balance at beginning of period
 Conversion of convertible bonds
  5,199,805 shares in 2006/3
 Issuance of new shares (Exercise of stock aquisition rights)
 Balance at end of period

Capital Surplus
 Balance at beginning of period
 Conversion of convertible bonds
 Increase through a stock-for-stock exchange
 Issuance of new shares (Exercise of stock aquisition rights)
 Balance at end of period

Retained Earnings
 Balance at beginning of period
 Net income
 Cash dividends
 Bonus to directors and corporate auditors
 Decrease on disposal of treasury stock
 Effect of accounting change in an overseas subsidiary
 Balance at end of period

Net Unrealized Holding Gains on Securities
 Balance at beginning of period
 Increase of net unrealized holding gains on securities
 Balance at end of period

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
 Balance at beginning of period
 Increase of foreign currency translation adjustments
 Balance at end of period

Treasury Stock
 Balance at beginning of period
 Purchase of treasury stock
  44,330 shares in 2006/3
  237 shares in 2006/12
 Sale of treasury stock
  147,000 shares in 2006/3
  34,000 shares in 2006/12
 Balance at end of period

Total

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries
 Balance at beginning of period
 Adoption of new accounting standards for presentation of net assets in the balance sheet at March 21, 2006 (Note 2(t))
 Decrease of minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries
 Balance at end of period

Net Assets

$97,137 
- 

1,419 
$98,556 

$153,438 
- 
- 

1,419 
$154,857 

$276,249 
54,655 

(10,612)
(2,284)

(117)
- 

$317,891 

$16,120 
1,427 

$17,547 

$7,136 
11,762 

$18,898 

($621)
(8)

478 

($151)

$607,598 

- 
1,344 
(1,310)

$34 

$607,632 

¥11,570 
- 

169 
¥11,739 

¥18,276 
- 
- 

169 
¥18,445 

¥32,904 
6,510 
(1,264)

(272)
(14)

- 
¥37,864 

¥1,920 
170 

¥2,090 

¥850 
1,401 

¥2,251 

(¥74)
(1)

57 

(¥18)

¥72,371 

- 
160 
(156)

¥4 

¥72,375 

¥9,641 
1,929 

- 
¥11,570 

¥13,933 
1,925 
2,418 

- 
¥18,276 

¥27,422 
6,473 

(722)
(176)

(15)
(78)

¥32,904 

¥1,401 
519 

¥1,920 

¥21 
829 

¥850 

(¥155)
(119)

200 

(¥74)

¥65,446 

- 
- 
- 
- 

¥65,446 

$974,721 

558,392 

318,042 

876,434 

98,287 

2,082 

(4,240)

(1,671)

168 

- 

- 

630 

(285)

(17)

(1,990)

(17)

(1,159)

- 

(2,065)

(830)

(9,394)

88,893 

34,011 

(193)

33,818 

420 

$54,655 

$1.29 

1.29 

0.22 

¥116,099 

66,510 

37,882 

104,392 

11,707 

248 

(505)

(199)

20 

- 

- 

75 

(34)

(2)

(237)

(2)

(138)

- 

(246)

(99)

(1,119)

10,588 

4,051 

(23)

4,028 

50 

¥6,510 

¥154.23 

153.70 

26.00 

¥105,665 

60,740 

33,650 

94,390 

11,275 

121 

(333)

144 

395 

96 

177 

47 

(116)

(17)

- 

(750)

(68)

(13)

(41)

(169)

(527)

10,748 

4,424 

(210)

4,214 

61 

¥6,473 

    

¥154.27 

146.97 

28.00 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

U.S. dollars
(Note 1)Yen

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen
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Consolidated Statements of Income
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

Net Sales (Note 15)

Operating Costs and Expenses:

 Cost of sales

 Selling, general and administrative

  Total operating costs and expenses

Operating Income (Note 15)

Other Income (Expenses):

 Interest and dividend income

 Interest expense

 Foreign exchange gains (losses), net

 Gain on sales of investment securities

 Gain on insurance, net of related loss

 Gain on settlement of license

 Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

 Loss on impairment of fixed assets (Note 2(m))

 Retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors

 Loss on disposal of inventories

 Loss on valuation of investment securities

 Loss on write-down of inventories

 Other, net

  Total other expenses, net

Income before Income Taxes

Income Taxes (Note 14):

 Current

 Deferred

  Total income taxes

Minority Interest in Earnings of Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Income

  

  

  

Per Share Information:

 Net income - basic

 Net income - diluted

 Cash dividends

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Common Stock
 Balance at beginning of period
 Conversion of convertible bonds
  5,199,805 shares in 2006/3
 Issuance of new shares (Exercise of stock aquisition rights)
 Balance at end of period

Capital Surplus
 Balance at beginning of period
 Conversion of convertible bonds
 Increase through a stock-for-stock exchange
 Issuance of new shares (Exercise of stock aquisition rights)
 Balance at end of period

Retained Earnings
 Balance at beginning of period
 Net income
 Cash dividends
 Bonus to directors and corporate auditors
 Decrease on disposal of treasury stock
 Effect of accounting change in an overseas subsidiary
 Balance at end of period

Net Unrealized Holding Gains on Securities
 Balance at beginning of period
 Increase of net unrealized holding gains on securities
 Balance at end of period

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
 Balance at beginning of period
 Increase of foreign currency translation adjustments
 Balance at end of period

Treasury Stock
 Balance at beginning of period
 Purchase of treasury stock
  44,330 shares in 2006/3
  237 shares in 2006/12
 Sale of treasury stock
  147,000 shares in 2006/3
  34,000 shares in 2006/12
 Balance at end of period

Total

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries
 Balance at beginning of period
 Adoption of new accounting standards for presentation of net assets in the balance sheet at March 21, 2006 (Note 2(t))
 Decrease of minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries
 Balance at end of period

Net Assets

$97,137 
- 

1,419 
$98,556 

$153,438 
- 
- 

1,419 
$154,857 

$276,249 
54,655 

(10,612)
(2,284)

(117)
- 

$317,891 

$16,120 
1,427 

$17,547 

$7,136 
11,762 

$18,898 

($621)
(8)

478 

($151)

$607,598 

- 
1,344 
(1,310)

$34 

$607,632 

¥11,570 
- 

169 
¥11,739 

¥18,276 
- 
- 

169 
¥18,445 

¥32,904 
6,510 
(1,264)

(272)
(14)

- 
¥37,864 

¥1,920 
170 

¥2,090 

¥850 
1,401 

¥2,251 

(¥74)
(1)

57 

(¥18)

¥72,371 

- 
160 
(156)

¥4 

¥72,375 

¥9,641 
1,929 

- 
¥11,570 

¥13,933 
1,925 
2,418 

- 
¥18,276 

¥27,422 
6,473 

(722)
(176)

(15)
(78)

¥32,904 

¥1,401 
519 

¥1,920 

¥21 
829 

¥850 

(¥155)
(119)

200 

(¥74)

¥65,446 

- 
- 
- 
- 

¥65,446 

$974,721 

558,392 

318,042 

876,434 

98,287 

2,082 

(4,240)

(1,671)

168 

- 

- 

630 

(285)

(17)

(1,990)

(17)

(1,159)

- 

(2,065)

(830)

(9,394)

88,893 

34,011 

(193)

33,818 

420 

$54,655 

$1.29 

1.29 

0.22 

¥116,099 

66,510 

37,882 

104,392 

11,707 

248 

(505)

(199)

20 

- 

- 

75 

(34)

(2)

(237)

(2)

(138)

- 

(246)

(99)

(1,119)

10,588 

4,051 

(23)

4,028 

50 

¥6,510 

¥154.23 

153.70 

26.00 

¥105,665 

60,740 

33,650 

94,390 

11,275 

121 

(333)

144 

395 

96 

177 

47 

(116)

(17)

- 

(750)

(68)

(13)

(41)

(169)

(527)

10,748 

4,424 

(210)

4,214 

61 

¥6,473 

    

¥154.27 

146.97 

28.00 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

U.S. dollars
(Note 1)Yen

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

$88,893 

27,252 
1,990 

- 
(168)
285 
(630)
(378)
453 

25 
(2,082)
4,240 

386 
17 
17 

(25,380)
(18,537)

8,270 
(2,284)
(5,751)
76,618 

1,981 
(3,770)

(118)
(43,060)
31,651 

1,033 
(185)

1,410 
(1,704)

(873)
(29,880)

3,686 
(12,199)

772 
(37,940)

5,793 
11,720 
(5,298)
2,838 

(8)
353 

(10,520)
(252)

- 
6,532 
(118)

11,040 

1,873 
6,624 

124,960 
$131,584 

¥10,588 

3,246 
237 

- 
(20)
34 
(75)
(45)
54 

3 
(248)
505 
46 

2 
2 

(3,023)
(2,208)

985 
(272)
(685)

9,126 
236 
(449)
(14)

(5,129)
3,770 

123 
(22)
168 
(203)
(104)

(3,559)
439 

(1,453)
92 

(4,519)

690 
1,396 
(631)
338 

(1)
42 

(1,253)
(30)

- 
778 
(14)

1,315 

223 
789 

14,884 
¥15,673 

¥10,748 

3,173 
- 

13 
(395)
116 
(47)

220 
75 
82 

(121)
333 
16 
17 

770 
(4,693)

(674)
313 
(176)

3,447 
13,217 

116 
(324)

(1,341)
(2,995)
8,673 

(1,594)
(320)
506 

- 
(3,270)
(4,019)

134 
(1,766)

(33)
(10,362)

1,253 
685 
(284)

- 
(119)
185 
(723)
(31)

(787)
- 

(50)
129 

336 
(1,224)

16,108 
¥14,884 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
 Income before income taxes
 Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization
  Loss on impairment of fixed assets
  Loss on valuation of investment securities
  Gain on sales of investment securities
  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
  Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
  Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful receivables
  Increase in directors’ and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits
  Increase in employees’ retirement benefits
  Interest and dividend income
  Interest expense
  Foreign exchange losses
  Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
  Retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors
  Increase in trade notes and accounts receivable
  Increase in inventories
  Increase in trade notes and accounts payable
  Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors
  Other, net
   Subtotal
  Interest and dividends received
  Interest paid
  Payment of retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors
  Income taxes paid
   Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
  Decrease (increase) in time deposits with maturities longer than three months
  Payments for purchase of investment securities
  Proceeds from sale or redemption of investment securities
  Payments for purchase of investments in a consolidated subsidiary
  Payments for purchase of investments in newly consolidated subsidiaries (Note 7)
  Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
  Increase in intangibles
  Other, net
   Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
  Net increase in short-term borrowings
  Increase in long-term debt
  Repayment of long-term debt
  Proceeds from exercise of stock aquisition rights
  Payments for purchase of treasury stock
  Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
  Cash dividends paid
  Cash dividends paid to minority interests
  Payment of funds for redemption of convertible bonds
  Reimbursement of funds for redemption of convertible bonds
  Other, net
   Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

$88,893 

27,252 
1,990 

- 
(168)
285 
(630)
(378)
453 

25 
(2,082)
4,240 

386 
17 
17 

(25,380)
(18,537)

8,270 
(2,284)
(5,751)

76,618 
1,981 

(3,770)
(118)

(43,060)
31,651 

1,033 
(185)

1,410 
(1,704)

(873)
(29,880)

3,686 
(12,199)

772 
(37,940)

5,793 
11,720 
(5,298)
2,838 

(8)
353 

(10,520)
(252)

- 
6,532 
(118)

11,040 

1,873 
6,624 

124,960 
$131,584 

¥10,588 

3,246 
237 

- 
(20)
34 

(75)
(45)
54 
3 

(248)
505 

46 
2 
2 

(3,023)
(2,208)

985 
(272)
(685)

9,126 
236 
(449)
(14)

(5,129)
3,770 

123 
(22)
168 
(203)
(104)

(3,559)
439 

(1,453)
92 

(4,519)

690 
1,396 
(631)
338 

(1)
42 

(1,253)
(30)

- 
778 
(14)

1,315 

223 
789 

14,884 
¥15,673 

¥10,748 

3,173 
- 

13 
(395)
116 
(47)

220 
75 
82 

(121)
333 
16 
17 

770 
(4,693)

(674)
313 
(176)

3,447 
13,217 

116 
(324)

(1,341)
(2,995)
8,673 

(1,594)
(320)
506 

- 
(3,270)
(4,019)

134 
(1,766)

(33)
(10,362)

1,253 
685 
(284)

- 
(119)
185 
(723)
(31)

(787)
- 

(50)
129 

336 
(1,224)

16,108 
¥14,884 

2006/12 2006/12 2006/3 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)Millions of yen

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
 Income before income taxes
 Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization
  Loss on impairment of fixed assets
  Loss on valuation of investment securities
  Gain on sales of investment securities
  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
  Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
  Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful receivables
  Increase in directors’ and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits
  Increase in employees’ retirement benefits
  Interest and dividend income
  Interest expense
  Foreign exchange losses
  Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
  Retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors
  Increase in trade notes and accounts receivable
  Increase in inventories
  Increase in trade notes and accounts payable
  Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors
  Other, net
   Subtotal
  Interest and dividends received
  Interest paid
  Payment of retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors
  Income taxes paid
   Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
  Decrease (increase) in time deposits with maturities longer than three months
  Payments for purchase of investment securities
  Proceeds from sale or redemption of investment securities
  Payments for purchase of investments in a consolidated subsidiary
  Payments for purchase of investments in newly consolidated subsidiaries (Note 7)
  Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
  Increase in intangibles
  Other, net
   Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
  Net increase in short-term borrowings
  Increase in long-term debt
  Repayment of long-term debt
  Proceeds from exercise of stock aquisition rights
  Payments for purchase of treasury stock
  Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
  Cash dividends paid
  Cash dividends paid to minority interests
  Payment of funds for redemption of convertible bonds
  Reimbursement of funds for redemption of convertible bonds
  Other, net
   Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

HORIBA, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries | Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Basis of presenting financial statements 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of 
HORIBA, Ltd. (“the Company”) have been prepared in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese 
Securities and Exchange Law and its related accounting 
regulations and in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are 
different in certain respects as to application and disclosure 
requirements from International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries are based on their 
accounting records maintained in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles prevailing in the respective 
countries of domicile.  The accompanying consolidated 
financial statements have been restructured and translated 
into English (with some expanded descriptions and the 
inclusion of the consolidated statement of shareholders’ 
equity for the year ended March 20, 2006) from the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared 
in accordance with Japanese GAAP and filed with the 
appropriate Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance 
as required by the Securities and Exchange Law.  Some 
supplementary information included in the statutory 
Japanese language consolidated financial statements, but 
not required for fair presentation, is not presented in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. 
dollars is included solely for the convenience of readers 
outside Japan, using the prevailing exchange rate at 
December 31, 2006, which was ¥119.11 to U.S.$1.00.  The 
convenience translations should not be construed as 
representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, 
could have been, or could in the future be converted into U.S. 
dollars at this or any other rate of exchange.  

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to 
conform to the current year’s presentation. 

At the June 17, 2006, annual meeting, the Company’s 
shareholders approved changing the accounting term from 
March 20 to December 31.  As a result, the consolidated 
accounting term ended December 31, 2006 was only 9 
months and 11 days from March 21, 2006 to December 31, 
2006.  Due to the changing the accounting term for the 
Company, certain subsidiaries also changed their accounting 
terms.  The accounting term for HORIBA Advanced Techno 
Co., was only 9 months and 11 days from March 21, 2006 to 
December 31, 2006 and that for HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd. 
was only 9 months from April 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006.  
The accounting term for the other consolidated subsidiaries 
was 12 months and unchanged.  

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
(a) Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of the Company and 42 (44 in the year ended March 20, 
2006) of its subsidiaries (“HORIBA” as a consolidated group).   
In the year ended December 31, 2006, one subsidiary was 
newly established, one subsidiary was acquired, one 
subsidiary was liquidated, one subsidiary was merged into 

another subsidiary and two subsidiaries were merged into 
the Company.   

The accompanying consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and significant 
companies over which the Company has control through 
majority voting rights or certain other conditions evidencing 
control by the Company. Significant inter-company 
transactions and accounts have been eliminated in 
consolidation. In the elimination of investments in 
subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries, 
including the portion attributable to minority shareholders, are 
evaluated using the fair value at the time the Company 
acquired control of the respective subsidiaries. Acquisition 
costs in excess of the net assets of acquired subsidiaries and 
affiliates which cannot be specifically assigned to individual 
accounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over five 
years. Some of the overseas consolidated subsidiaries 
amortize acquisition costs in excess of the net assets of 
acquired subsidiaries and affiliates which cannot be 
specifically assigned to individual accounts on a straight-line 
basis over four to twenty years, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles of the country of their 
incorporation.  

At December 31, 2006, the year-end of consolidated 
subsidiaries matches that of the consolidated financial 
statements (see note 1). 

One of the Company’s subsidiaries is not included in the 
consolidated accounts as the effect on total assets, sales, 
income and retained earnings is immaterial. 

The Company has seven affiliated companies.  For one 
of the seven affiliates the equity method was applied due to 
increased materiality in the year ended December 31, 2006.  
Investments in six (seven in the year ended March 20, 2006) 
affiliates (generally 20%-50% ownership) over which the 
Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over 
operating and financial policies and one non-consolidated 
subsidiary are accounted for on a cost basis, not by the 
equity method, as the effects on income and retained 
earnings are immaterial. 
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, readily 
available bank deposits, and short-term highly liquid 
investments readily convertible into cash with insignificant 
risk of changes in value and original maturities of three 
months or less from date of purchase.  
(c) Securities 
Available-for-sale securities with available fair market values 
are stated at fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses 
on securities are reported, net of applicable income taxes, as 
a separate component of net assets.  Realized gains and 
losses on sale of such securities are computed using moving 
average cost. Available-for-sale securities with no available 
fair market value are stated mainly at moving average cost.  
(d) Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost. Cost is principally determined 
by the weighted average method for finished products and 
work-in-process and by the moving average method for raw 
materials.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is computed on the following methods over the 
estimated useful life of the asset: 

Buildings acquired after April 1, 1998 
- Straight-line method

Other:
The Company and domestic subsidiaries 

- Declining balance method
Overseas subsidiaries 

- Straight-line method
Estimated useful lives of assets are principally as follows: 

Buildings and structures - 5 to 60 years 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles - 2 to 12 years 

(f) Software costs 
Amortization of computer software, which is used by HORIBA 
and included in “Other intangibles” in the consolidated 
balance sheets, is computed on the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful life of five years.  
(g) Allowance for doubtful receivables 
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries provide for 
doubtful accounts principally at an amount computed based 
on the actual ratio of bad debts in the past plus estimated 
uncollectible amounts of certain individual receivables. The 
overseas subsidiaries provide for doubtful accounts based on 
estimates by management. 
(h) Accrued bonuses to employees 
Accrued bonuses to employees are provided for the 
expected payment of employee bonuses for the current fiscal 
year to those employees serving at the end of the fiscal year. 
(i) Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 
Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors are 
provided for the expected payment of director and corporate 
auditor bonuses for the current fiscal year to those directors 
and corporate auditors serving at the end of the fiscal year. 

Prior to the year ended December 31, 2006, bonuses to 
directors and corporate auditors were accounted for as a 
reduction of retained earnings.  In the year ended 
December 31, 2006, the Company and certain domestic 
subsidiaries adopted “Accounting Standard for Directors’ 
Bonus” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 
4 issued on November 29, 2005) and changed to provide for 
bonuses to directors and corporate auditors at the end of the 
fiscal year to which such bonuses are attributable.  The 
effect of the adoption of this new accounting standard on 
operating income and income before income taxes was ¥300 
million ($2,519 thousand).  The effect on segment 
information is described in Note 15. 
( ) Reserve for product warranty 
Reserve for product warranty is provided for accrued 
warranty expenses for products of the Company and certain 
subsidiaries. The provision is determined based on actual 
product warranty liability incurred in the past. 
(k) Retirement benefits and pension plans 
The Company and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries 
provide for employees’ severance and retirement benefits 
based on estimated amounts of projected benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets.  Actuarial gains or losses 

are recognized in expenses using the straight-line method 
over fixed years (5 years) within the average of the estimated 
remaining service years commencing with the following 
period.  In the Company, prior service costs are recognized 
in expenses using the straight-line method over fixed years 
(10 years) within the average of the estimated remaining 
service years commencing in the period they arise.  In 
certain consolidated subsidiaries, they are expensed in the 
period they arise. 
(l) Retirement benefits for directors and corporate 

auditors 
Retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors are 
provided for at an amount based upon internal rules at the 
balance sheet date. 
(m) Impairment of fixed assets.
HORIBA reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and, 
as a result, recognized a special loss on impairment of 
goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2006. 

Location Assets Loss on impairment
SRH Systems Ltd. (U.K.) Goodwill ¥237 million 

($1,990 thousand)
In applying the accounting standard for impairment of fixed 

assets, HORIBA evaluated indications of impairment by 
grouping assets on an industry segment basis.  HORIBA 
estimated the recoverability of the goodwill for the investment 
in SRH Systems Ltd. (U.K.) under the estimated term of 
future cash flows and recognized an impairment loss for the 
full amount of the book value. 
(n) Foreign currency translation 
Short-term and long-term receivables and payables in foreign 
currencies are translated into Japanese yen based on 
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. 

Balance sheet accounts of consolidated foreign 
subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the balance 
sheet date except for shareholders’ equity accounts, which 
are translated at the historical rates. Revenue and expense 
accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated 
into Japanese yen at average annual exchange rates. 
Differences arising from the application of the process stated 
above are separately presented in the consolidated financial 
statements in “Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments” 
and “Minority Interests” in net assets. 
(o) Finance leases 
Finance leases that do not transfer ownership or have 
bargain purchase option provisions are accounted for in the 
same manner as operating leases in accordance with 
Japanese GAAP. 
(p) Research and development expenses 
Research and development expenses are charged to income 
when incurred. Research and development expenses 
charged to income for the years ended March 20, 2006, and 
December 31, 2006, were ¥6,553 million and ¥6,136 million 
($51,515 thousand), respectively. 
(q) Derivatives and hedge accounting 
Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value and 
changes in the fair value are recognized as gains or losses 
unless derivative financial instruments are used for hedging 
purposes.
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HORIBA uses foreign currency exchange contracts to 
manage risk related to its importing and exporting activities. 
The use of foreign currency exchange contracts is limited to 
the amounts of HORIBA’s foreign currency denominated 
receivables and payables.  HORIBA also uses interest rate 
swap contracts to avoid the risk of rising interest rates. 

Contracts are entered into and controlled by the finance 
department, which reports results to the Board of Directors. 
Transactions involving derivative contracts are limited to 
highly rated banking institutions, and HORIBA considers 
there are no material credit risks associated with them. 

In cases where a foreign exchange forward contract meets 
certain hedging criteria, the hedged item is stated at the 
forward exchange rate.  Hedge effectiveness is evaluated 
by verifying the currency type, term and identity of the 
hedged item and the hedging instrument. 
(r) Income taxes 
HORIBA recognizes tax effects of loss carryforwards and 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for tax and financial reporting. The 
provision for current income tax is computed based on the 
pretax income included in the consolidated statements of 
income.

The asset and liability approach is used to recognize 
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax 
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.  

Effective for the year commenced on April 1, 2004 and 
later, according to the revised local tax law, assessment by 
estimation on the basis of the size of the business was 
introduced as enterprise taxes.  The tax portion of this 
assessment was recorded as selling, general and 
administrative expenses.  Because of this change, selling, 
general and administrative expenses increased by ¥139 
million, and operating income and income before income 
taxes decreased by the same amount for the year ended 
March 20, 2006.   
(s) Per share information  
The computations of net income per share are based on the 
weighted average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during each period. The weighted average 
number of common shares used in the computation for the 
years ended March 20, 2006 and December 31, 2006 were 
40,200 thousand and 42,210 thousand, respectively.  
Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full 
conversion of dilutive convertible bonds at the beginning of 
the year or the later date of issuance with an applicable 
adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax and 
dilutive stock option plans. The weighted average number of 
shares used in the computation for the years ended March 
20, 2006 and December 31, 2006 were 42,233 thousand and 
42,356 thousand, respectively. 

Cash dividends per share shown in the consolidated 
statements of income represent actual amounts applicable to 
earnings in the respective fiscal year, including dividends to 
be paid after the end of the period. 

(t) Presentation of net assets in the balance sheet 
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the 
Company adopted “Accounting Standard for Presentation of 
Net Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Accounting Standards 
Board of Japan Statement No. 5 issued on December 9, 
2005) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for 
Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Accounting 
Standards Board of Japan Guidance No. 8 issued on 
December 9, 2005).  Due to the adoption of these 
accounting standards, minority interests are included in net 
assets at December 31, 2006.  Under the previous 
presentation rules, minority interests were presented as a 
separate component in the consolidated balance sheets.  
The adoption of these accounting standards had no impact 
on the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 
December 31, 2006.  For the year ended December 31, 
2006, the amount of shareholders’ equity would have been 
¥72,371 million ($607,598 thousand), if the previous year’s 
presentation was applied.   
(u) Accounting standard for statement of changes in net 

assets 
Effective for the year ended December 31, 2006, the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted new 
accounting standards, “Accounting Standard for Statement of 
Changes in Net Assets” (Accounting Standards Board of 
Japan Statement No. 6 issued on December 27, 2005), and 
“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Statement of Changes 
in Net Assets” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan 
Guidance No. 9 issued on December 27, 2005).  Previously, 
consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity were 
prepared for purposes of inclusion in the consolidated 
financial statements although such statements were not 
required in Japan.   
(v) Business Combination and Business Separation 
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the 
Company adopted “Accounting Standard for Business 
Combination” (issued by the Business Accounting Council on 
October 31, 2003), “Accounting Standard for Business 
Separation” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan 
Statement No. 7 issued on December 27, 2005) and 
“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combination 
and Business Separation” (Accounting Standards Board of 
Japan Guidance No. 10 issued on December 27, 2005). 
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Corporate Philosophy

HORIBA’s company motto “Joy and Fun” 
Originates from the belief that if we take interest and pride in the work that occupies most of the active time 
in our lives, in the place where we spend the large part of each day, then as a result our satisfaction with life 
will increase, and we will be able to enjoy our lives even more. Taking interest and pride in our work leads us 
to “Joy and Fun.”

Business Operations

We, at the HORIBA, apply our most advanced analytical tech-

nologies to provide highly original analytical and measuring 

products and equipment in such fields as engine emissions, 

scientific analysis, industrial and process control, environment 

monitoring, semi-conductor process control, medical and 

health-care, and biotechnology, thereby contributing to the 

progress of science and technology, improvement in the quali-

ty, development and benefit of human health. We are engag-

ing in the new businesses for derivative and peripheral prod-

ucts aim to develop scientific technology and improve the life 

of the community, while at the same time minimizing the im-

pact on the environment.

We strictly abide by all environmental protection laws and 

regulations in our business activities. In addition, all HORIBA 

group companies are required to attain the highest levels of 

quality for establishing, developing, and maintaining environ-

mental systems, including implementing internal control stan-

dards that minimize the impact that our business activities 

have on the environment.

We strive to deliver higher value-added products and servi-

ces in the shortest possible time to customers all over the 

world, combining the functions and specialties of develop-

ment, production, sales, and services from globally located 

points throughout the world. Furthermore, we aim to be the 

leader in the global market in the fields and product seg-

ments in which we operate, to meet all customers’ needs con-

sistently, and to effectively maximize our limited resources 

through a policy of selective investment.

 

Customer Responsiveness

We maintain a philosophy of pursuing technology to the ulti-

mate degree in both the fundamental and applied technology 

fields, supplying products that continuously satisfy custom-

ers’ requirements. We are committed to offering top-quality, 

highly reliable products and services with a consistent level of 

excellence throughout the world. We are obliged to observe 

the highest standards for establishing, developing, and main-

taining quality control systems. To provide products and servi-

ces to customers in the fastest delivery time possible, we 

have adopted the slogan “Ultra-Quick Supplier” for all our ac-

tivities. This slogan encompasses not only production lead 

times but also development, marketing and sales, service, 

and control functions.

 
Responsibility to Shareholders and 
Investors

Our basic policy is to calculate annual dividends on an alloca-

ted rate of net income. Important information regarding man-

agement and business operations are fully disclosed on a reg-

ular basis to shareholders and potential investors. A timely 

responsive management control system should be main-

tained by HORIBA group companies to ensure that company 

objectives are met, profit generated and the information dis-

closed represents the true performance of the company as 

well as its management.

 

Employees

We are proud of the entrepreneurial spirit that led to the crea-

tion of HORIBA group companies. Each employee is made 

aware of this heritage, and we actively encourage ideas and 

innovations from individual employees. HORIBA promotes an 

open and fair business environment that allows all employees 

to achieve their individual goals and maximize their potential. 

To further each employee’s personal and professional growth, 

we encourage thinking from a global perspective and have es-

tablished a global personnel development program and per-

formance evaluation system. We value employees who chal-

lenge their personal abilities and recognize their own 

accomplishments.
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Major Group Companies

Asia

Europe 

HORIBA Jobin Yvon SAS HORIBA ABX SAS

HORIBA Instruments (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Capital ¥300,000,000 

Address No.2, Lane 1883, Huicheng South Rd. Jiading Industrial District, Shanghai 
201821 China

Phone +86-21-6952-2835／FAX　+86-21-6952-2823

Manufacture, sales and services of measuring devices

HORIBA Instruments (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 

Main
Businesses

HORIBA ABX Diagnostics (Thailand) Limited

HORIBA Automotive Test Systems Ltd.

HORIBA India Private Limited

Capital W330,000,000

Address 110 Suntech-City, 513-15, Sangdaewon, Jungwon-Ku, Sungnam-City, 
Kyungki-Do, Korea

Phone +82-31-777-2277／FAX　+82-31-777-2288

Sales of measuring devices

Capital W770,000,000

Address 202-501 Pucheon Techno Park, 192 Yakdae-Dong, Wonmi-ku, 
Pucheon, Kyunggido, Korea 

Phone +82-32-621-0100 ～4／FAX　+82-32-621-0105

Manufacture and sales of measuring devices

HORIBA Korea Ltd.

 HORIBA STEC Korea Ltd.

Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Japan

Capital ¥1,478,000,000

Address 11-5, Kamitoba Hokodate-cho, Minami-ku, Kyoto 601-8116, Japan

Phone +81-(0)75-693-2300 ／FAX　+81-(0)75-693-2350

HORIBA STEC is a leading manufacturer of gas, liquid and other types of 
flow rate controll devices in semiconductor manufacturing equipment, and 
boasts a top share of the global market for mass flow controllers

Capital ¥250,000,000

Address 31, Miyanonishi-cho Kisshoin, Minami-ku, Kyoto 601-8306, Japan 

Phone +81-(0)75-321-7184／FAX　+81-(0)75-321-7291 

HORIBA Advanced Techno is a manufacturer specializing in water quality 
analysis and environmental equipment 

Capital ¥50,000,000 

Address 1-7-8 Higashikanda, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 101-0031, Japan 

Phone +81-(0)3-3866-0984／FAX　+81-(0)3-3866-0908 

HORIBA ITECH develops a variety of software products, including an 
automobile transport scheduling and monitoring program, used in 
HORIBA products

Capital ¥250,000,000 

Address 2 Miyanohigashi-cho, Kisshoin, Minami-ku, Kyoto 601-8305, Japan 

Phone +81-(0)75-325-5291／FAX　+81-(0)75-315-9972  

HORIBA TECHNO SERVICE is a maintenance service company for 
products of HORIBA Group companies

HORIBA STEC, Co., Ltd. HORIBA Advanced Techno Co., Ltd.

HORIBA ITECH Co., Ltd. HORIBA TECHNO SERVICE Co., Ltd.

Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital S$1,500,000

Address 10 Ubi Crescent, #05-11/12 UBI TECHPARK, 408564, Singapore

Phone +65-6745-8300／FAX　+65-6745-8155

Sales of measuring devicesMain
Businesses

Capital Baht6,000,000

Address 395, Latya Road, Somdetchaopraya Sub-district, Klongsan District,
Bangkok 10600, Thailand

Phone +66-2-861-59-95／FAX　+66-2-861-52-00

     Sales and services of hematology analyzersMain
Businesses

Capital US$1,000,000 

Address Room 1701, United Plaza, 1468 Nanjing, Rd. West, Shanghai, 200040, China

Phone +86-21-3222-1818／FAX　+86-21-6289-5553

Sales and services of HORIBA products

HORIBA Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Main
Businesses

Capital W1,350,000,000

Address 604-1, Yoksam-Dong, Kangnam-Ku, Seoul, Korea

Phone +82-2-562-7296／FAX　+82-2-562-7630

Sales and Services of automotive test systems such as engine test 
systems

Main
Businesses

Capital INR 19,000,000

Address Room 1521, 15th Floor, Eros Corporate Tower, Nehru Place, 
New Delhi 110019, India

Phone +91-11-4223-5070／FAX　+91-11-4223-5370

Sales and services of automotive test systemsMain
Businesses

Capital EUR7,075,168

Address 16-18 rue du Canal, 91165 Longjumeau Cedex, France 

Phone +33-1-64-54-13-00／FAX　+33-1-69-09-07-21

Development, manufacturer, and sales of spectroscopic systems. 
HORIBA Jobin Yvon is a leading manufacturer of spectroscopic systems 
in the global market, holding the No. 1 market share for difraction gratings 
and spectrometers. HORIBA Jobin Yvon (France) joined HORIBA 
in 1997.

Capital EUR41,700,000

Address Parc Euromédecine, Rue du Caducée, BP7290 34184
Montpellier Cedex 4, France

Phone +33-4-67-14-15-16／FAX　+33-4-67-14-15-17

Development, sales and services of hematology analyzers.  HORIBA ABX, 
the core of which is ABX SA (France), joined HORIBA in 1996, and aims 
to gain the top market share in the global market by utilizing its 
complementary relationship with HORIBA, Ltd.

Main
Businesses Main

Businesses
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HORIBA Europe GmbH HORIBA Europe Automation Division GmbH

HORIBA GmbH HORIBA Automotive Test Systems GmbH

Americas

HORIBA Jobin Yvon Inc. HORIBA ABX Inc. 

HORIBA/STEC Incorporated HORIBA Instruments Incorporated

HORIBA ABX Ltda. HORIBA Automotive Test Systems, Corp.

HORIBA Automotive Test Systems, Inc.

Main
Businesses

Capital EUR8,802,000

Address Hans-Mess-Strasse. 6, D-61440 Oberursel, Germany

Phone +49-6172-1396-0／FAX　+49-6172-137385

Manufacture/assembling and sales of measuring devices

Main
Businesses

Capital EUR127,822.97 

Address Zabergaeustrasse. 3, D-73765 Neuhausen, Germany

Phone +49-7158-933-300／FAX　+49-7158-933-399

Engineering and maintenance of software

Capital EUR724,132.83

Address 12 Av. des Tropiques Hightec Sud, F-91955 Les Ulis, France

Phone +33-1-69-29-96-23／FAX　+33-1-69-29-95-77

Sales of measuring devices

Capital £1,100,000 

Address Kyoto Close, Summerhouse Road, Moulton Park, Northampton NN3 6FL, 
U.K.

Phone +44-1604-542 500／FAX　+44-1604-542 699

Manufacture/assembling and sales of measuring devices

HORIBA France Sarl HORIBA Instruments Limited

Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital EUR363,364.17

Address Kaplanstrasse 5, A-3430 Tulln, Austria 

Phone +43-2272-65225／FAX　+43-2272-65230

Manufacture and sales of measuring devices

EUR5,000,000 

Landwehrstrasse 55, D-64293, Darmstadt, Germany

+49-6151-32-2896／FAX　+49-6151-32-1235 

Development, manufacture and sales of automotive test systems such as engine 
test systems. HORIBA Automotive Test Systems segment aims at being a total 
solution provider by utilizing its complementary relationship between HORIBA, Ltd. 
and DTS business purchased from Carl Schenck AG in Germany in 2005.

Capital 

Address 

Phone
Main
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital US$1,000 

Address 3880 Park Avenue, Edison, NJ 08820-3012, U.S.A.

Phone +1-732-494-8660／FAX　+1-732-549-5125 

Manufacture and sales of spectroscopic systems

Capital US$22,501,000  

Address 34 Bunsen Drive, Irvine Spectrum, Irvine, CA 92618, U.S.A. 

Phone +1-949-453-0500／FAX　+1-949-453-0600

Imports and sales of hematology analyzersMain
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital US$4,071,374 

Address 1080 E. Duane Ave. Suite A, Sunnyvale, CA 94086, U.S.A.

Phone +1-408-730-4772／FAX　+1-408-730-8975 

Manufacture and sales of gas flow rate measuring and control devices in
semiconductor manufacturing equipment

Capital US$7,500,000 

Address 17671 Armstrong Avenue, Irvine, CA 92614, U.S.A.

Phone +1-949-250-4811／FAX　+1-949-250-0924

Manufacture and sales of measuring devicesMain
Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital BRL22,000,000 

Address Avenida das Nações Unidas, 21.735  - Jurubatuba São Paulo-
SP-Brazil-CEP 04795-100, Brazil

Phone +55-11-55-45-1500／FAX　+55-11-55-45-1570 

Manufacture and sales of hematology analyzers

Capital US$5,200,000 

Address 2890 John R Road, Troy, MI 48033-2300, U.S.A.

Phone +1-248-689-9000／FAX　+1-248-689-8578

Development, sales and services of automotive test systems such as en-
gine test systemsMain

Businesses

Main
Businesses

Capital CAN$3,914,382 

Address 1115 North Service Road West, Oakville, Ontario L6M 1N1, Canada

Phone +1-905-827-7755／FAX　+1-905-827-8162 

Development, sales and services of automotive test systems such as en-
gine test systems

Main
Businesses

HORIBA, Ltd. / Annual Report 2006/12 59



Yen/Share

(Thousands of 
shares)

(Yen)

Volume

Stock Price (Based on closing price at end of each period)

Yen/Share

Stock Information

Stock Price and Volume Trend

Stock Price

1999 1-3 Jan.-Mar.

4-6 Apr.-Jun.

7-9 Jul.-Sep.

10-12 Oct.-Dec.

2000 1-3 Jan.-Mar.

4-6 Apr.-Jun.

7-9 Jul.-Sep.

10-12 Oct.-Dec.
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Corporate Data

Board of Directors

Corporate Information As of December 31, 2006

As of March 24, 2007

As of December 31, 2006Major Shareholders

Chairman, President & CEO Atsushi Horiba

Executive Vice President Kozo Ishida Dr. Eng.

Managing Director Fumitoshi Sato

Director Juichi Saito

Director (Outside) Masahiro Sugita Auditor of Banyu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Auditor Hiroshi Tajima

Auditor (Outside) Kanji Ishizumi President of the Law Offices of Chiyoda Kokusai, Attorney at Law

Auditor (Outside) Keisuke Ishida Chairman of the Board, CEO, Shashin Kagaku Co., Ltd.

Head Office 2, Miyanohigashi-cho, Kisshoin, Minami-ku, Kyoto 601-8510, Japan

Founded October 17, 1945

Incorporated January 26, 1953

Paid-in Capital 11,738,530,480 yen

Number of Employees 4,697 (Consolidated)

Fiscal Closing Date December 31, annually

Annual Meeting of Shareholders Held in March

Transfer Agent and Registrar The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

Independent Auditors KPMG AZSA & Co.

Stock Listings Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section

Osaka Securities Exchange, First Section

Securities Code: 6856

Name of Shareholders Shares (Thousands) Percentage (%)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 5,922 13.99

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. 5,774 13.64

Bear Stearns & Co. Inc. 3,311 7.82

Masao Horiba 1,700 4.01

Mitsui Asset Trust and Banking Company, Limited 1,102 2.60

Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 1,027 2.42

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 836 1.97

The Bank of Kyoto, Ltd. 828 1.95

HORIBA Raku-Raku Kai 724 1.71

MIXX 701 1.65
Number of Shareholders: 3,592

Number of Shares 
42,314,752

Ratio of 
Shares

Ratio of
Shareholders

Individual investors
88.84%

Others
4.07%

Foreign investors
3.84%

Securities companies
1.08%

Financial institutions
2.17%

Individual investors
18.5%

Others
7.1%

Foreign investors
21.3%

Financial institutions
52.2%

Securities companies
0.9%

Information Available to Stockholders and Investors
Annual Report

Fact Book

Gaiareport (Environment and Social Report)

Consolidated Financial Quarterly Report

Corporate Web Site   http://www.horiba.com
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HORIBA, Ltd.
2, Miyanohigashi-cho, Kisshoin, Minami-ku, Kyoto 601-8510, Japan
Phone： +81-75-313-8121   Fax：+81-75-312-7389
E-mail： ir-info@horiba.com
URL： http://www.horiba.com
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